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FISCAL 2008 HIGHLIGHTS

e Record GAAP Net Income of $27.8 million (diluted earnings per share $2.95)
® Record Adjusted non-GAAP* Net Income of $11.0 million

® Adjusted non-GAAP* Net Income up 20% (continuing operations)

® Return on average equity of 50% on GAAP basis, and 17% on non-GAAP* basis
® Stockholders’ equity up 110% on GAAP basis and 41% on non-GAAP* basis

*  See note at foot of table below

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
(In millions, except share and per share numbers)
Income Statement
Operating revenues $ 1274 $ 536 $ 359 $ 261 $ 22.0
Interest expense 11.2 9.4 21 1.3 3.2
Non-interest expenses 68.6 49.9 28.5 20.7 16.9
Income before taxes and minority interest 47.6 (5.7) 5.3 41 1.9
Taxes 18.0 (2.0) 1.7 15 2.0
Minority interest 0.4 0.6 0.1 — —
Income from continuing operations 29.2 (4.3) 3.5 2.6 (0.1)
Discontinued operations 14 0.2 — — —
Net income (loss) $ 278 $ 4.5) $ 35 $ 26 $ (0.1)
Diluted earnings per share $ 295 $ (0.56) $ 041 033 $ (0.02)
Average diluted shares outstanding 9,901,766 8,086,837 8,387,761 8,023,891 5,090,304
Balance Sheet
Total assets $ 4380 $ 3612 $ 1999 $ 147.0 67.7
Total stockholders’ equity $ 748 $ 356 $ 339 $ 281 §$ 24.6
Net asset value per share outstanding at
September 30 $ 838 $ 431 $ 432 $ 378 $ 3.48
Change in operating revenues 138% 49% 38% 19% 104%
Change in non-interest expenses 37% 75% 38% 22% 82%
Net income to operating revenues 22% (8)% 10% 10% 0%
Increase in stockholders’ equity 110% 5% 21% 14% 165%
Return on average equity 50% (13)% 11% 10% (1)%
Unaudited, Pro Forma Data (non-GAAP)—see note
below
Adjusted operating revenues, marked-to-market $ 1005 $ 770 $ 434 $ 261 $ 22.0
Adjusted, pro forma net income from continuing
operations $ 124 3 103 § 82 $ 26 $ (0.1)
Adjusted, pro forma net income $ 11.0 10.1  § 82 § 26 $ (0.1)
Total adjusted, pro forma stockholders’ equity $ 773 % 549 $ 387 $ 281 % 24.6
Net asset value per share outstanding at
September 30 $ 866 $ 6.65 §$ 494 $ 378 $ 3.48
Change in adjusted operating revenues 31% 77% 66% 19% 104%
Adjusted, pro forma net income to adjusted operating
revenues 11% 13% 19% 10% 0%
Increase in adjusted, pro forma stockholders’ equity 41% 42% 38% 14% 165%
Return on average adjusted, pro forma equity 17% 22% 25% 10% (1)%

Note: The Unaudited, Pro Forma Data (non-GAAP) has been adjusted for unrealized gains in commodities inventory, which is
stated at the lower of cost or market value under GAAP, and unrealized values of forward commitments to purchase and sell
commodities, which are not included within the GAAP financial statements. For a reconciliation to 2008, 2007 and 2006 GAAP
numbers and why management presents non-GAAP numbers, see page 19 of the Annual Report.
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5 YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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COMPANY DESCRIPTION

International Assets Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively “INTL” or the “Company”)
form a global, diversified financial services firm focused on niche markets. The Company has offices in
New York, London, Miami, Orlando, Fort Lauderdale, Buenos Aires, Montevideo, Dubai and
Singapore.

Our Strategy

We focus on allocating capital to business opportunities that we expect will deliver high returns in the
short and medium term and will build a franchise valuation multiple for our shareholders over the long
term. At this stage in our development, we believe the best way to achieve this objective is to build a
niche, customer-centric, financial services company with multiple, uncorrelated revenue streams.

Most large financial intermediaries focus on market segments that have a relatively high volume of
transparent transactions. These opportunities are increasingly dominated by a consolidating group of
large financial services companies, which employ technology-based solutions that force declining
spreads.

In contrast, INTL seeks to exploit niche financial markets that are not perceived as attractive to larger
financial services companies and exhibit one or more of the following characteristics: the size of the
market is relatively small; the market has limited liquidity with opaque pricing; and the market is difficult
to automate due to a manual service component. By providing execution for our clients in these
markets, we seek to earn premium spreads that allow us to achieve our financial objectives.

Our customers are a diverse group of wholesale customers including major investment banks,
commercial banks, brokers, institutional investors, corporations, charities, governmental organizations
and non-governmental organizations located throughout the world. They are generally end users of
financial products we offer. These customers demand consistent, quality execution.

Our management approach is to apply a centralized and disciplined capital allocation, risk
management and cost control process while delegating the execution of strategic objectives and
day-to-day management to experienced individuals. This requires high quality managers, a clear
communication of performance objectives and strong financial and compliance controls. In this way we
believe we can build a scalable and significantly larger organization that embraces an entrepreneurial
approach to business underpinned with strong central controls.

Our Activities

As a principal market-maker the Company provides competitive execution to wholesale customers in

the following products:

= unlisted American Depository Receipts and common shares of more than 8,000 companies in over
20 countries

= more than 100 currencies

= precious and base metals, offering complete physical, hedging and investment solutions

As an advisor and investor the Company earns fees and proprietary returns by:
= structuring and placing debt instruments
= managing and investing in managed accounts, long only funds and hedge funds




CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S REPORT

(Please note that any term below that contains the word ‘adjusted’ refers to non-GAAP,
marked-to-market information.)

During 2008 we started to realize the benefits of the significant growth strategy undertaken in 2007.
We set new records for operating revenues and net income on both a GAAP and an adjusted basis
and achieved a return on average equity (‘ROE’) of 50% on a GAAP basis and an adjusted ROE of
17%. These results are in stark contrast to many others in the financial markets sector.

We more than doubled our stockholders’ equity, to $74.8 million. Having arranged committed bank
facilities that continue well into fiscal 2009, we ended the fiscal year in a stronger financial position than
ever before and in a good position to take advantage of opportunities.

2008 will be remembered for the financial headwinds that steadily gathered strength and culminated in
a hurricane that is still raging. We were not entirely immune to the effects of this financial hurricane.
The last quarter of our fiscal year was especially challenging for our asset management business but
our trading businesses were able to take advantage of the dramatically increased volatility.

The entire global financial markets are in uncharted territory with many storied financial firms having
collapsed or become de facto nationalized. The business models and future viability of many large
financial institutions are in serious doubt. In many ways the financial markets as we knew them are
over and it is impossible to predict how things may play out.

We believe that our approach of focusing on a customer-centric model in niche markets will serve us
well. Our business model is not predicated on leverage or on taking advantage of inflating financial
asset prices. Our robust customer base consists of commercial end users who have a regular need for
our services. We do not rely on speculative investors or customers, a market that has been devastated
over the last year.

In summary, our overall business model continued to be sound in the most challenging of
environments for a financial organization. We largely avoided the pitfalls that have imperiled many
larger organizations and produced a satisfactory ROE for the year. Our longer-term investors will
recognize that our conscious effort to develop a number of client-oriented businesses with uncorrelated
revenue streams played a key part in our firm’s stability during 2008.

Our Financial Performance

We believe our investors should evaluate the business the way management and our bankers do — on
a fully marked-to-market basis. A reconciliation of GAAP numbers to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers is
provided in ‘ltem 6. Selected Financial Data’, on page 19 of this Annual Report.

We are very pleased with our 2008 results, which marked another set of records, despite the very
challenging market conditions especially towards the end of our fiscal year. Our adjusted operating
revenues for the year were $100.5 million, up 31% on the prior fiscal year. Adjusted ROE, our key
management metric, was 17%, exceeding our stated minimum target of 15%.

Each of our trading businesses achieved record revenues and in aggregate showed an increase in
adjusted operating revenues of 44% over the prior year. Our advisory activities (asset management
and debt capital markets) experienced difficult market conditions, especially in the last fiscal quarter,
and in aggregate these revenues declined 20% over last year as a result of a reduction in fees as well
as marked-to-market losses on seed capital.

Our asset management business has suffered significant redemptions, in line with many other funds,
and we are now facing a re-build of this business once market conditions stabilize.




Net income from continuing operations was $29.2 million, equal to diluted continuing earnings per
share of $3.09. Adjusted net income from continuing operations was $12.4 million for the year.

Review of Our Businesses
The Company currently divides its business into five segments.

International Equities Market-Making: INTL Trading provides execution and liquidity to national and
regional broker-dealers and institutions. We make markets in approximately 800 over-the-counter
American Depository Receipts (‘ADRS’), including those of some of the world’s largest multi-national
corporations, and foreign ordinary shares. In addition, we will on request make prices in more than
8,000 ADRs and foreign ordinary shares.

Equity market-making revenues for 2008 were $33.9 million (2007 — $27.5 million), up 23%. Our
commitment to providing a quality execution service to our customers, even during the extreme
volatility experienced during 2008, allowed us to increase our market share and drive revenues. We
believe that we have now established ourselves as a leading provider of these execution services in
the US and will have an opportunity to further grow market share as competitors exit this market
segment.

With our increased geographical footprint, we continue to explore ways to leverage our demonstrated
expertise and offer this service to clients based outside of the US.

Foreign Exchange: INTL Global Currencies, our London-based subsidiary, provides treasury and
foreign exchange services to over 450 charitable and governmental aid organizations, as well as a
large number of corporations and banks around the world. We trade over 100 currencies and
specialize in smaller, more difficult emerging markets where there is limited liquidity. At the end of the
2008 fiscal year we closed down our Hong Kong based margin FX trading business.

Foreign exchange revenues for 2008, on a continuing basis, were $23.8 million (2007 — $14.2 million),
up 68%. We have made significant progress in moving customers onto our proprietary trading platform
allowing us to become their treasury services provider across a wide range of currencies. We have
continued to increase both the number and depth of our relationships globally. During 2008 we
expanded this business into Asia and have already seen meaningful benefits. The current market
conditions and general concern over the health of and service provided by traditional banks has
allowed us to grow our market share and we believe that this should continue into 2009.

Commodities Trading: Our commodities trading business provides metals producers, consumers,
recyclers and investors with physical trading in precious and base metals and sophisticated hedging
products, including combinations of buying and selling puts and calls. During 2008 our Dubai and
Singapore based operations expanded significantly and we now operate a truly global commodities
business.

Adjusted operating revenues for 2008 were $22.8 million (2007 — $14.2 million), up 61%. During 2008
our base metals business, especially lead, enjoyed favorable market conditions and made exceptional
returns. While these exceptional returns for base metals are unlikely to continue this has been offset by
the rapid growth of our precious metals business in the latter half of fiscal 2008.

International Debt Capital Markets: INTL originates, structures and places in the international and
domestic capital markets a wide array of emerging market debt instruments, including asset backed
securities, commercial loans, unsecured bonds and notes, and trade-related debt instruments used in
cross-border trade finance and project finance transactions. This activity is largely a fee based
business and is conducted through offices in Miami, Argentina, Uruguay and Singapore.

International debt capital markets revenues for 2008 were $4.3 million (2007 — $6.4 million), down 33%.




Asset Management: This business is conducted through INTL Consilium, an SEC registered
investment adviser, INTL Capital, an asset manager registered in Dubai, and INTL Gainvest, an asset
manager based in Argentina. Across all these companies we apply a consistent absolute return
philosophy to our niche markets where our expertise should produce superior risk adjusted returns for
our investors.

The Company’s revenues in the asset management business include management and performance
fees for management of third party assets and investment gains or losses on the Company’s seed
capital investments in registered funds or proprietary accounts managed by the Company’s investment
managers.

Consolidated asset management revenues for 2008 were $12.2 million (2007 — $14.0 million), down
13%. Aggregate assets under management at the beginning of the 2008 fiscal year were $1.3 billion,
peaked at $2.5bn in June 2008 and ended the fiscal year at $1.2bn. The rapidly deteriorating markets
had a significant impact on the INTL Consilium business in the last quarter of fiscal 2008, which
experienced significant redemptions, in line with the industry generally continuing into fiscal 2009. This
industry wide redemption pressure virtually eliminated liquidity in the credit markets, resulting in mark-
downs in the funds and on our seed capital in these funds.

The INTL Consilium business has contracted dramatically and the outlook for the asset management
industry generally is very uncertain. However, we believe that there will be significantly less capacity in
the industry going forward, as many managers fail. The managers that survive will not only be able to
re-generate their business but also be able to produce attractive returns in the medium term.

Risk Management

We are in the business of taking risks to provide our customers with efficient execution in markets
which may be relatively illiquid and have some operational complexity. We have a commitment to our
shareholders, customers and employees to manage these risks and to keep them within appropriate
limits.

We have always regarded liquidity as the most significant risk for a small financial services company, a
view that has been borne out in the recent market events and applies even to large institutions. We
re-negotiated our syndicated loan and other bank facilities during these difficult credit markets on good
terms and in addition were able to secure committed funding for at least a year in the syndicated loan
and longer for our other major facilities.

With increased stockholders’ equity and significant undrawn bank facilities, we should be able to take
advantage of opportunities to expand our capabilities as talent and opportunities present themselves.

The other major risk we focus on is counter-party risk. During 2008 we experienced our first significant
credit loss in 6 years due to extreme volatility which caused one of our customers to go bankrupt. We
have fully written off this exposure of $2.4 million.

We believe that our risk management systems have come through the 100 year flood and our cautious
approach with a focus on nominal exposures rather than VAR and other “black box” risk analysis has
served us well. Many of the industry’s standard but complex approaches to evaluating risk have proved
to be flawed during 2008. We believe that there is no substitute for experience and common sense to
ensure that we do not place our organization at risk. However, the market turmoil is likely to continue
for some time and we need to remain vigilant and cautious.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to the highest level of corporate governance. We were subject to our first
Sarbanes-Oxley s404 audit of internal controls in 2007. A majority of our directors are independent and




all of the members of our Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees are independent. Details
of these committees, biographies and charters are available on our corporate website,
www.intlassets.com.

Our full corporate governance statement is included on the last page of this Annual Report.

Looking Forward

We believe that our results during 2008, especially for the first 9 months, demonstrated the payoff for
the dramatic expansion undertaken over the last two years. The company has established a global
footprint, giving us access to an expanding customer base. We are now starting to achieve critical
mass in terms of trading flow, customer relationships, talent and capital, all of which should allow us to
accelerate growth over the next couple years.

These are exciting but dangerous times and in the short term we need to adopt a defensive posture.
The financial landscape is today unrecognizable from a year ago with investment banks and hedge
funds having to re-invent themselves. We believe that the customer execution business will turn to
technology platform solutions for the large liquid markets and to smaller more nimble boutique firms for
the niche markets. Our focus on these niche markets should allow us to be a meaningful player in the
second category.

We plan to emerge from this uncertain time with a more established core business as competitors
withdraw and an expanded capability as a large talent pool becomes available.

We are excited about our prospects and believe the new financial landscape that will emerge should
be a real opportunity for our company to grow substantially.

Most members of our management team are significant shareholders in the business and therefore
have their interests aligned with those of all shareholders.

We would like to thank all of our colleagues for their contribution to this year's performance, our Board
and advisors for their guidance, our bankers for their financial support and our shareholders for
entrusting their capital to us.

Sean M. O’Connor
Chief Executive Officer

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These forward-looking statements involve known
and unknown risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond the Company’s control, including adverse
changes in economic, political and market conditions, losses from the Company’s market-making and trading
activities arising from counterparty failures and changes in market conditions, the possible loss of key personnel,
the impact of increasing competition, the impact of changes in government regulation, the possibility of liabilities
arising from violations of federal and state securities laws and the impact of changes in technology in the
securities, foreign exchange and commodities dealing and trading industries. Although the Company believes that
its forward-looking statements are based upon reasonable assumptions regarding its business, future market
conditions, there can be no assurances that the Company’s actual results will not differ materially from any results
expressed or implied by the Company’s forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or
otherwise. Readers are cautioned that any forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance.
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PART I

NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this report, other than purely historical information, including estimates, projections,
statements relating to our business plans, objectives and expected operating results, and the assumptions upon
which those statements are based, are “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statements are based on current expectations and assumptions that are
subject to risks and uncertainties which may cause actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking
statements. A detailed discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and
events to differ materially from such forward-looking statements is included in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” (refer to Part I, Item 1A). The Company undertakes no obligation to update or revise publicly any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

International Assets Holding Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively “INTL” or “the Company”’) form
a financial services group focused on select international markets. We commit our capital and expertise to
market-making and trading of financial instruments, currencies and commodities, and to asset management. The
Company’s activities are divided into five functional areas—international equities market-making, international
debt capital markets, foreign exchange trading, commodities trading and asset management.

The Company provides execution to its customers in the following products:

* unlisted American Depository Receipts (“ADRs”) and common shares of more than 8,000 companies in
over 20 countries

e more than 100 currencies

e base and precious metals, offering complete physical, hedging and investment solutions

The Company provides these services to a diverse group of wholesale customers including major investment
banks, commercial banks, brokers, institutional investors, corporations, charities, governmental organizations and
non-governmental organizations located throughout the world.

INTL originates, structures and places in the international and domestic capital markets a wide array of
emerging market debt instruments, including complex asset backed securities, commercial loans, unsecured bonds
and notes, and trade-related debt instruments used in cross-border trade finance and project finance transactions.

Through its asset management activities, INTL leverages its specialist expertise in its niche markets to
provide institutional investors with unique investment products. All of our products share a similar philosophy of
absolute return performance with low volatility and low correlation to the underlying markets, under normal
market conditions.

The Company was formed in October 1987 and during the 2008 fiscal year conducted operations through a
number of wholly-owned operating subsidiaries and two joint ventures. As of September 30, 2008 we had 195
employees in 11 offices in the United States of America, Argentina, Brazil, Uruguay, United Kingdom, Dubai
and Singapore.

The Company’s internet address is www.intlassets.com. The Company’s annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, statements of changes in beneficial ownership and
press releases are available in the Investor Relations section of this website. The Company’s website also
includes information regarding the Company’s corporate governance, including the Company’s Code of Ethics,
which governs the Company’s directors, officers and employees.



Business Strategy

We focus on allocating capital to business opportunities that we expect will deliver high returns in the short
and medium term and will build a franchise valuation multiple for our shareholders over the long term. At this
stage in our development, we believe the best way to achieve this objective is to build a niche, customer centric,
financial services company with multiple, uncorrelated revenue streams. Most large financial intermediaries
focus on market segments that have a high volume of relatively transparent transactions. These opportunities are
increasingly dominated by a consolidating group of large financial services companies, which employ
technology-based solutions that force declining spreads.

In contrast, INTL seeks to exploit niche financial markets that are not perceived as attractive to larger
financial services companies and exhibit one or more of the following characteristics:

e the size of the market is relatively small
e the market has limited liquidity with opaque pricing

e the market is difficult to automate and contains a service component requiring manual intervention

By providing execution for our clients in these markets we are able to earn premium spreads that allow us to
achieve our financial objectives.

Our customers, which include major investment banks, commercial banks, brokers, institutional investors,
corporations, charities, governmental organizations throughout the world and non-governmental organizations,
are generally end users of the financial products which we offer. These customers demand consistent, quality
execution.

Our management strategy is to apply a centralized and disciplined capital allocation, risk management and
cost control process while delegating the execution of strategic objectives and day-to-day management to
experienced individuals. This requires high quality managers, a clear communication of performance objectives
and strong financial and compliance controls. We believe this strategy will enable us to build a scalable and
significantly larger organization that embraces an entrepreneurial approach to business underpinned by strong
central controls.

Each of the Company’s businesses is volatile and their financial performance can change due to a variety of
factors which are both outside of management’s control and not readily predictable. To address this volatility, the
Company has sought to diversify into a number of uncorrelated businesses.

Trading Revenues

In the Company’s business, purchases of individual securities, currencies, commodities or derivative
instruments may be from single or multiple customers or counterparties. These purchases may be covered by a
matching sale to a customer or counterparty or may be aggregated with other purchases to provide liquidity
intraday, for a number of days or, in some cases, particularly the base metals business, even longer periods of
time (during which market values may fluctuate). Sales of individual securities, currencies, commodities or
derivative instruments may also be to single or multiple customers or counterparties. They may be made from
inventory, they may be covered by a simultaneous and matching purchase in the market or they may represent a
short sale and be covered by a later purchase in the market.

While the Company is able to track the number and dollar amount of individual transactions with each
customer, this information is not a reliable indicator of revenues because it is not necessarily proportional to
revenues or profitability. Depending on the nature of the instrument traded, market conditions and timing of a
transaction, revenues and profitability may differ widely from trade to trade and from customer to customer.
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International Equities Market-Making

The Company is a leading U.S. market-maker in unlisted ADRs and foreign common shares. The Company
conducts these activities through INTL Trading, Inc. (“INTL Trading”), a broker-dealer regulated by the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”). INTL Trading provides execution services and liquidity to
national broker-dealers, regional broker-dealers and institutional investors. The Company focuses on those
international equities in which the Company can use its expertise and experience to provide customers with
competitive execution and superior service. The Company also utilizes its proprietary technology, including
internet technology, to achieve these goals.

The Company makes markets in approximately 800 ADRs and foreign ordinary shares traded in the
over-the-counter (“OTC”) market. In addition, the Company will, on request, make prices in more than 8,000
other ADRs and foreign common shares. As a market-maker, the Company provides trade execution services by
offering to buy shares from, or sell shares to, broker-dealers and institutions. The Company displays the prices at
which it is willing to buy and sell these securities and adjusts its prices in response to market conditions. When
acting as principal, the Company commits its own capital and derives revenue from the difference between the
prices at which the Company buys and sells shares. The Company also earns commissions by executing trades on
an agency basis.

While the Company’s customers are other broker-dealers and institutions, the business tends to be driven by
the needs of the private clients of those broker-dealers and institutions. The size of private client trades may be
uneconomical for the in-house international equities trading desks of our customers to execute. The Company is
able to provide execution of smaller trades at profitable margins.

Foreign Exchange Trading

The Company trades over 100 currencies, with a concentration on select, illiquid currencies of developing
countries. The Company has an extensive global correspondent network that provides access to these currencies
at competitive rates. The Company’s target customers are financial institutions, multi-national corporations,
governmental and charitable organizations operating in and transferring funds to or from these developing
countries. In addition, the Company executes trades based on the foreign currency flows inherent in the
Company’s other international activities.

The Company primarily acts as a principal in buying and selling foreign currencies on a spot basis. The
Company derives revenue from the difference between the purchase and sale prices.

The Company periodically holds foreign currency positions for longer periods to create liquidity for
customers or to generate proprietary earnings.

The Company’s foreign exchange activities in fiscal 2008 were conducted through INTL Global Currencies
Ltd. (“INTL Global Currencies”), a wholly-owned subsidiary domiciled in the United Kingdom. During 2007 we
also established a company in Hong Kong, INTL Global Currencies (Asia) Ltd., to conduct a margin foreign
exchange trading business. This company became operational in October 2007. Due to continuing losses and, in
the Company’s view, little prospect of turning this business to profitability, the activities of the Hong Kong
company were terminated at the end of August 2008. The losses of this company have been reported as
discontinued operations in the Company’s Consolidated Income Statements.

Commodities Trading

The Company’s commodities trading activities encompass the trading of physical metals such as gold, silver
and platinum group metals as well as certain base metals, mainly lead and copper. The Company has relationships
with a number of small and medium-sized metals producers, refiners, recyclers, consumers and manufacturing
entities, and provides them with a full range of physical metals trading and hedging capabilities. The Company is
also active in the acquisition of scrap metals which are refined under contract and sold to our customers.
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The Company provides customers with sophisticated option products, including combinations of buying and
selling puts and calls. The Company assists its customers in protecting the value of their future production by
selling them put options or making forward purchases on an OTC basis. The Company mitigates its risks by
effecting offsetting option trades with market counterparties or through the purchase or sale of exchange-traded
commodities futures.

The Company commits its own capital to buy and sell precious and base metals on a spot and forward basis.
The Company derives revenue from the difference between the purchase and sale prices.

The Company generally mitigates the price risk associated with its commodities inventory through the use of
exchange-traded derivatives. This price risk mitigation does not generally qualify for hedge accounting under
generally accepted accounting principles (‘GAAP’). In such situations, unrealized gains in inventory are not
recognized under GAAP, but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative positions are recognized under
GAAP. Additionally, GAAP does not require us to reflect changes in estimated values of forward commitments to
purchase and sell commodities. As a result, the Company’s reported commodities trading earnings are subject to
significant volatility. The Company’s commodities trading activities are conducted through wholly owned
subsidiaries, INTL Commodities, Inc. and INTL Commodities Mexico S de RL de CV (together, “INTL
Commodities™), incorporated in the state of Delaware, USA and Mexico respectively; and through a joint venture,
INTL Commodities DMCC, incorporated in Dubai in the United Arab Emirates and consolidated as a variable
interest entity in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 46(R) (“FIN 46R”). INTL Commodities has a branch
office in London and has also established a trading presence in Singapore to focus on customers in that region.

International Debt Capital Markets

The Company originates, structures and places a wide array of emerging market debt instruments in the
international and domestic capital markets. These instruments include complex asset backed securities, unsecured
bond and loan issues, negotiable notes and other trade-related debt instruments used in cross-border trade
finance. The transactions may be evidenced by loan agreements, bonds, notes, bills of exchange, accounts
receivable and other types of debt instruments and may be placed as private or public transactions and may
constitute securities in certain instances.

From time to time the Company may invest its own capital in debt instruments before selling them. These
instruments are typically sold to international banks and financial institutions.

The Company earns fees for introducing borrowers and lenders or advising borrowers on capital raising
transactions.

Most of the Company’s activities are conducted through INTL Trading, with non-securities transactions
conducted through International Assets Holding Corporation or INTL Capital Ltd. (‘INTL Capital’). Local
market transactions in South America are conducted through INTL Gainvest, a leading participant in the
Argentine asset backed securities (“ABS”) market.

Asset Management

The Company’s revenues in the asset management business include management and performance fees for
management of third party assets and investment gains or losses on the Company’s investments in registered
funds or proprietary accounts managed by the Company’s or independent investment managers. Total third party
assets under management at September 30, 2008 amounted to approximately $1.2 billion, including about $25
million of seed capital invested by the Company (compared with $1.3 billion at September 30, 2007, including
about $16 million of seed capital invested by the Company). A proprietary account managed for the Company by
INTL Consilium LLC (‘INTL Consilium’), was valued at $12.9 million at September 30, 2008, giving a total fair
value of proprietary investments at that date of $37.9 million. The purpose of the latter account, which has been
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in existence since November 2006, was to establish a track record for the launch of an Africa fund. The Legacy
Greater Africa Alpha Fund, advised by INTL Consilium, was established in July 2008 with an initial investment
of $25 million by an African bank.

The Company’s strategy is to build the asset management business by applying an absolute return
philosophy to niche markets in which the Company has significant expertise and experience. This business is
conducted through INTL Consilium, INTL Capital and INTL Gainvest.

INTL Consilium is a joint venture organized by the Company and an unaffiliated third party and is
consolidated as a variable interest entity in accordance with FIN 46(R). INTL Consilium is registered as an
investment adviser with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). INTL Consilium manages and
operates a number of hedge funds and acts as investment sub-adviser for one of the portfolios of World Express
Funds.

INTL Capital is domiciled in Dubai and is authorized by the Dubai Financial Service Authority to operate
from the Dubai International Financial Centre. INTL Capital manages the INTL Trade Finance Fund Limited, a
Cayman Island company established to invest primarily in global trade finance-related assets.

INTL Gainvest is authorized by the Argentina regulatory authorities to manage three locally listed mutual
funds. These funds consist primarily of asset backed securities issued by Argentine companies, are domestically
rated and distributed to local pension funds, corporations and individuals. In addition, INTL Gainvest manages
segregated portfolios for high net worth individuals.

Competition

The international financial markets are highly competitive and rapidly evolving. In addition, these markets
are dominated by firms with significant capital and personnel resources that are not currently available to the
Company. The Company expects these competitive conditions to continue in the future, although the nature of
the competition may change as a result of the current global financial crisis. In addition, the crisis is likely to
produce opportunities for the Company to expand or consolidate its activities. The Company’s strategy is to
focus on smaller niche markets that are less attractive to larger competitors and require specialized expertise. The
Company believes that it can compete successfully with other financial intermediaries in these markets based on
the Company’s expertise and quality of service.

The Company’s activities are impacted, and will continue to be impacted, by investor interest in the markets
served by the Company. The instruments traded in these markets compete with a wide range of alternative
investment instruments. The Company seeks to counterbalance changes in demand in specified markets by
undertaking activities in multiple uncorrelated markets.

Technology has increased competitive pressures on financial intermediaries by improving dissemination of
information, making markets more transparent and facilitating the development of alternative execution
mechanisms. In the debt trading markets, TRACE, the trade reporting system introduced by FINRA, has reduced
spreads and profitability. In the equity markets, electronic communication networks (“ECNs”) compete with
market-makers like the Company. ECNs provide a neutral forum in which third parties display and match their
orders, but do not commit capital or provide liquidity to the marketplace. ECNs and similar alternative execution
mechanisms provide the greatest benefit for markets in highly liquid securities. Similar execution mechanisms
also exist in the foreign exchange market. The Company competes by focusing on niche markets for less liquid
instruments and using its capital to enhance liquidity for customers.

Administration and Operations

The Company employs operations personnel to supervise and, for certain products, complete the clearing
and settlement of transactions.



INTL Trading’s securities transactions are cleared through Broadcort, a division of Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith, Inc. INTL Trading does not hold customer funds or directly clear or settle securities
transactions.

In the foreign exchange and commodities trading businesses, the Company records all transactions in a
proprietary trading system and employs operations staff to settle all transactions. The Company may hold
customer funds in relation to these activities.

Certain of the Company’s proprietary investments are held in a prime brokerage account provided by
Merrill Lynch.

The Company’s administrative staff manages the Company’s internal financial controls, accounting
functions, office services and compliance with regulatory requirements.

Governmental Regulation

The Company’s activities, particularly in the securities markets, are subject to significant governmental
regulation, both in the United States and overseas. Failure to comply with regulatory requirements could result in
administrative or court proceedings, censure, fines, issuance of cease-and-desist orders, suspension or
disqualification of the regulated entity, its officers, supervisors or representatives.

The regulatory environment in which the Company operates is subject to frequent change and these changes
directly impact the Company’s business and operating results. The U.S.A. Patriot Act of 2001 and the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002 have placed additional regulatory burdens and compliance costs on the Company.

The securities industry in the United States is subject to extensive regulation under federal and state
securities laws. The Company is required to comply with a wide range of requirements imposed by the SEC,
state securities commissions and FINRA. These regulatory bodies are charged with safeguarding the integrity of
the financial markets and with protecting the interests of investors in these markets.

The activities of INTL Trading, as a broker-dealer, are primarily regulated by FINRA and the SEC while
those of INTL Consilium, as a registered investment adviser, are primarily regulated by the SEC.

Net Capital Requirements

INTL Trading is subject to the net capital requirements imposed by SEC Rule 15¢3-1 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. These requirements are intended to ensure the financial integrity and liquidity of broker-
dealers. They establish both minimum levels of capital and liquid assets. The net capital requirements prohibit
the payments of dividends, redemption of stock, the prepayment of subordinated indebtedness and the making of
any unsecured advances or loans to any stockholder, employee or affiliate, if such payment would reduce the
broker-dealer’s net capital below required levels.

The net capital requirements restrict the ability of INTL Trading to make distributions to the Company.
They also restrict the ability of INTL Trading to expand its business beyond a certain point without the
introduction of additional capital.

As of September 30, 2008, INTL Trading’s net capital and excess net capital were $1.5 million and $0.5
million, respectively.

Foreign Operations

The Company operates in a number of foreign jurisdictions, including the United Kingdom, Argentina,
Brazil, Uruguay, Mexico, Nigeria, Dubai and Singapore. INTL has established wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Mexico and Nigeria but does not have offices or employees in those countries.
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INTL Trading and INTL Consilium each have branch offices in the United Kingdom. As a result, their
activities are also subject to regulation by the United Kingdom Financial Services Authority.

The activities of INTL Capital Limited and INTL Commodities DMCC are subject to regulation by the
Dubai Financial Services Authority and the Dubai Multi Commodities Centre, respectively.

The activities of INTL Global Currencies (Asia) Limited were subject to regulation by the Hong Kong
Securities & Futures Commission until its activities were discontinued at the end of August 2008.

Business Risks

The Company seeks to mitigate the market and credit risks arising from its financial trading activities
through an active risk management program. The principal objective of this program is to limit trading risk to an
acceptable level while maximizing the return generated on the risk assumed.

The Company has a defined risk policy which is administered by the Company’s risk committee, which
reports to the Company’s audit committee. The Company has established specific exposure limits for inventory
positions in every business, as well as specific issuer limits and counterparty limits. These limits are designed to
ensure that in a situation of unexpectedly large or rapid movements or disruptions in one or more markets,
systemic financial distress, the failure of a counterparty or the default of an issuer, the potential estimated loss
will remain within acceptable levels. The audit committee reviews the performance of the risk committee on a
quarterly basis to monitor compliance with the established risk policy.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
The Company faces a variety of risks that could adversely impact its financial condition and results of

operations.

The risks faced by the Company include the following:

We do not have a consistent history of profitability and our ability to achieve consistent profitability in the
future is subject to uncertainty.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008 we recorded a net income of $27.8 million, compared with
a net loss of $4.5 million in 2007, and net income of $3.5 million in 2006.

Our ability to achieve consistent profitability is subject to uncertainty due to the nature of our businesses
and the markets in which we operate. In particular, our revenues and operating results may fluctuate significantly
in the future because of the following factors:

e Volatility in the securities and commodities markets in which we operate
e Changes in the volume of our market making and trading activities

e Changes in the value of our financial instruments, currency and commodities positions and our ability to
manage related risks

e  Our ability to manage personnel, overhead and other expenses

* Changes in execution and clearing fees

e The addition or loss of sales or trading professionals

e Changes in legal requirements

e General economic and political conditions

Although we are continuing our efforts to diversify the sources of our revenues, it is likely that our revenues

and operating results will continue to fluctuate substantially in the future and such fluctuations could result in losses.
These losses could have a material adverse affect on our business, financial condition and operating results.
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The manner in which we account for our commodities inventory and forward commitments may increase
the volatility of our reported earnings in the future.

Our net income is subject to volatility due to the manner in which we report our commodities inventory.
This inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market value. The Company generally mitigates the price risk
associated with its commodities inventory through the use of derivatives. This price risk mitigation does not
generally qualify for hedge accounting under GAAP. In such situations, any unrealized gains in inventory are not
recognized under GAAP, but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative positions are recognized under
GAAP. Additionally, GAAP does not require us to reflect changes in estimated values of forward commitments
to purchase and sell commodities. As a result, the Company’s reported earnings from this business segment are
subject to greater volatility than the earnings from our other business segments.

Our substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial conditions.

As of September 30, 2008, our total consolidated indebtedness to lenders and noteholders was
approximately $136.6 million, and we expect to increase our indebtedness in the future as we continue to expand
our business. Our indebtedness could have important consequences, including:

e increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions

e requiring that a portion of our cash flow from operations be used for the payment of interest on our debt,
thereby reducing our ability to use our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions and general corporate requirements

e limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund future working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions and general corporate requirements

e limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the securities industry
e restricting our ability to pay dividends or make other payments
* placing us at a competitive disadvantage to our competitors that have less indebtedness

We may be able to incur additional indebtedness in the future, including secured indebtedness. If new
indebtedness is added to our current indebtedness levels, the related risks that we now face could intensify.

Committed credit facilities currently available to the Company might not be renewed.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had four credit facilities under which it may borrow up to $200
million. Of these, three are committed facilities:

* one for $125 million available to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, INTL Commodities, for its
commodities trading activities, is committed until June 27, 2009

e one for $35 million available to the Company for general purposes is committed until December 31,
2009

e one for $25 million available to the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, INTL Global Currencies, for

its foreign exchange trading activities, is committed until December 31, 2009

It is possible that these facilities might not be renewed at the end of their commitment periods and that the
Company will be unable to replace them with other facilities. In such an event, the Company will be compelled
to shrink its business activities, leading to reduced profitability.

We face risks associated with our market making and trading activities.

We conduct our market-making and trading activities predominantly as a principal, which subjects our
capital to significant risks. These activities involve the purchase, sale or short sale for customers and for our own



account of financial instruments, including equity and debt securities, commodities and foreign exchange. These
activities are subject to a number of risks, including risks of price fluctuations, rapid changes in the liquidity of
markets and counterparty creditworthiness.

These risks may limit our ability to either resell financial instruments we purchased or to repurchase
securities we sold in these transactions. In addition, we may experience difficulty borrowing financial
instruments to make delivery to purchasers to whom we sold short, or lenders from whom we have borrowed.
From time to time, we have large position concentrations in securities of a single issuer or issuers in specific
countries and markets. This concentration could result in higher trading losses than would occur if our positions
and activities were less concentrated.

The success of our market-making activities depends on:

e the price volatility of specific financial instruments, currencies and commodities

e our ability to attract order flow

e the skill of our personnel

e the availability of capital

e general market conditions

To attract market-trading and trading business, we must be competitive in:

e providing enhanced liquidity to our customers

* the efficiency of our order execution

e the sophistication of our trading technology

e the quality of our customer service

In our role as a market maker and trader, we attempt to derive a profit from the difference between the

prices at which we buy and sell financial instruments, currencies and commodities. However, competitive forces
often require us to:

* match the quotes other market makers display; and

e hold varying amounts of financial instruments, currencies and commodities in inventory.

By having to maintain inventory positions, we are subject to a high degree of risk. We cannot ensure that we
will be able to manage our inventory risk successfully or that we will not experience significant losses, either of
which could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

The current global financial crisis has adversely affected the Company’s asset management business.

The Company incurred losses in its asset management segment during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008 due
to redemptions and losses in the funds managed by the Company and losses in propriety accounts of the
Company. As a result of these losses, total third party assets under management in this segment dropped from
$2.3 billion at June 30, 2008 to $1.2 billion at September 30, 2008. Performance in the funds did not meet
required hurdles and there was a clawback of performance fees previously accrued. Management fees were
earned on a lower asset base. The Company recognized marked-to-market losses in its proprietary investments
(investments in registered funds and the proprietary account referred to above) of $4.2 million during the fourth
quarter of 2008. The fair value of these proprietary investments at September 30, 2008 was $37.9 million.

The adverse developments in the asset management business were directly attributable to the global
financial crisis which caused the decline in the value of the assets held by the funds and required many investors
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to request redemptions in order to meet other liquidity requirements. In the event that the financial crisis persists,
then this business segment may continue to suffer from further losses and redemptions and reduced advisory
fees. Additionally, the Company may continue to suffer losses in its proprietary accounts.

The current global financial crisis has heightened many of the risks to which the Company is exposed.

The current financial crisis has increased many of the risks which accompany the Company’s business,
including the risk of counterparty failure, the inability to obtain necessary financing and the absence of liquid
markets. To date, the Company has not suffered any material adverse developments from the financial crisis
other than the losses in its asset management business and a decline in revenues in its debt capital markets
business. However, the continuation of the crisis may affect other aspects of the Company’s businesses for a
variety of reasons. A general decrease in worldwide economic activity could reduce demand for Company’s
equity market making and foreign exchange business. The substantial decline in commodities prices may affect
the levels of business in the commodities trading segment. The ultimate effect of the crisis on the Company’s
liquidity, financial condition and capital resources is unpredictable.

We may have difficulty managing our growth.

Since October 1, 2005, we have experienced significant growth in our business. Our operating revenues
grew from $35.9 million in the 2006 fiscal year to $53.6 million in 2007, to $127.4 million in 2008.

This growth has required and will continue to require us to increase our investment in management
personnel, financial and management systems and controls, and facilities. In the absence of continued revenue
growth, the costs associated with our expected growth would cause our operating margins to decline from current
levels. In addition, as is common in the financial industry, we are and will continue to be highly dependent on the
effective and reliable operation of our communications and information systems.

The scope of procedures for assuring compliance with applicable rules and regulations has changed as the
size and complexity of our business has increased. In response, we have implemented and continue to revise
formal compliance procedures.

It is possible that we will not be able to manage our growth successfully. Our inability to do so could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Counterparties or customers may fail to pay us.

As a market-maker of OTC and listed securities, the majority of our securities transactions are conducted as
principal with broker-dealer counterparties located in the United States. We clear our securities transactions
through an unaffiliated clearing broker. Substantially all of our equity and debt securities are held by this clearing
broker. Our clearing broker has the right to charge us for losses that result from a counterparty’s failure to fulfill
its contractual obligations.

We are responsible for self-clearing our foreign exchange and commodities activities and, in addition, take
principal risk to counterparties and customers in these activities. The settlement of exchange traded options is
effected through clearing institutions. Any metals or other physical commodities positions are held by third party
custodians.

Our policy is to monitor the credit standing of the counterparties and customers with which we conduct
business. Nevertheless, one or more of these counterparties or customers may default on their obligations. If any

do, our business, financial condition and operating results could be materially adversely affected.

In our equity, debt and commodities trading businesses we rely on the ability of our clearing brokers to
adequately discharge their obligations on a timely basis. We also depend on the solvency of our clearing brokers
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and custodians. Any failure by a clearing broker to adequately discharge its obligations on a timely basis, or
insolvency of a clearing broker or custodian, or any event adversely affecting our clearing brokers or custodians,
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our revenues may decrease due to changes in market volume, prices or liquidity.

Our revenues may decrease due to changes in market volume, prices or liquidity. Declines in the volume of
securities, foreign exchange and commodities transactions and in market liquidity generally may result in lower
revenues from market-making and trading activities. Changes in price levels of securities and commodities also
may result in reduced trading activity and reduce our revenues from market-making transactions. Changed price
levels also can result in losses from changes in the market value of securities and commodities held in inventory.
Sudden sharp changes in market values of securities and commodities can result in:

e illiquid markets
* fair value losses arising from positions held by the Company
e the failure of buyers and sellers of securities and commodities to fulfill their settlement obligations

e redemptions from funds managed in our asset management business segment and consequent reductions
in management fees

e reductions in accrued performance fees in our asset management business segment
e increases in claims and litigation

Any change in market volume, price or liquidity or any other of these factors could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our revenues may be impacted by diminished market activity due to adverse economic, political and market
conditions.

The amount of our revenues depends in part on the level of activity in the securities, foreign exchange and
commodities markets in which we conduct business. The level of activity in these markets is directly affected by
numerous national and international factors that are beyond our control, including:

e economic, political and market conditions

e the availability of short-term and long-term funding and capital

e the level and volatility of interest rates

e legislative and regulatory changes

e currency values and inflation

Any one or more of these factors may reduce the level of activity in these markets, which could result in

lower revenues from our market-making and trading activities. Any reduction in revenues or any loss resulting
from these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We depend significantly on a limited group of customers.

Based on management’s assessment of our business, we believe that a small number of our customers
account for a significant portion of our revenues in each of our businesses. We are unable to measure the level of
this concentration because our dealing activities do not permit us to quantify revenues generated by each
customer. We expect a significant portion of the future demand for each of our market-making and trading
services to remain concentrated within a limited number of customers. None of these customers is obligated
contractually to use our market-making or trading services. Accordingly, these customers may direct their trading
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activities to other market-makers or traders at any time. The loss of or a significant reduction in demand for our
services from any of these customers could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
and operating results.

We depend on our ability to attract and retain key personnel.

Competition for key personnel and other highly qualified management, sales, trading, compliance and
technical personnel is significant. It is possible that we will be unable to retain our key personnel and to attract,
assimilate or retain other highly qualified personnel in the future. The loss of the services of any of our key
personnel or the inability to identify, hire, train and retain other qualified personnel in the future could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

From time to time, other companies in the financial sector have experienced losses of sales and trading
professionals. The level of competition to attract these professionals is intense. It is possible that we will lose
professionals due to increased competition or other factors in the future. The loss of a sales and trading
professional, particularly a senior professional with broad industry expertise, could have a material adverse affect
on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We depend significantly on our computer and communications systems.

Our market-making and trading activities depend on the integrity and performance of the computer and
communications systems supporting them. Extraordinary trading volumes or other events could cause our
computer systems to operate at an unacceptably low speed or even fail. Any significant degradation or failure of
our computer systems or any other systems in the trading process could cause customers to suffer delays in
trading. These delays could cause substantial losses for customers and could subject us to claims from customers
for losses. Our systems may also fail as a result of:

e hurricanes, tornados, fires or other natural disasters

e power or telecommunications failures

e acts of God

e computer hacking activities

e terrorism

° war

Any computer or communications system failure or decrease in computer systems performance that causes

interruptions in our operations could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

We are subject to extensive government regulation.

The securities industry is subject to extensive regulation under federal, state and foreign laws. In addition,
the Securities and Exchange Commission, FINRA, other self-regulatory organizations, commonly referred to as
SROs, state securities commissions, and foreign securities regulators require strict compliance with their
respective rules and regulations. These regulatory bodies are responsible for safeguarding the integrity of the
financial markets and protecting the interests of participants in those markets. As participants in various financial
markets, we may be subject to regulation concerning certain aspects of our business, including:

e trade practices
e capital structure
e record retention

e the conduct of our directors, officers and employees
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Failure to comply with any of these laws, rules or regulations could result in adverse consequences. We and
certain of our officers and employees have, in the past, been subject to claims arising from acts in contravention
of these laws, rules and regulations. These claims have resulted in the payment of fines and settlements. It is
possible that we and our officers and other employees will, in the future, be subject to similar claims. An adverse
ruling against us or our officers and other employees could result in our or our officers and other employees
being required to pay a substantial fine or settlement and could result in suspension or expulsion. This could have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

The regulatory environment in which we operate is subject to change. New or revised legislation or
regulations imposed by the SEC, other United States or foreign governmental regulatory authorities, SROs or
FINRA could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results. Changes
in the interpretation or enforcement of existing laws and rules by these governmental authorities, SROs and
FINRA could also have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Additional regulation, changes in existing laws and rules, or changes in interpretations or enforcement of
existing laws and rules often directly affect securities firms. We cannot predict what effect any such changes
might have. Our business, financial condition and operating results may be materially affected by both
regulations that are directly applicable to us and regulations of general application. Our level of trading and
market-making activities can be affected not only by such legislation or regulations of general applicability, but
also by industry-specific legislation or regulations.

We are subject to net capital requirements.

The SEC, FINRA and various other regulatory agencies require our broker-dealer subsidiary, INTL Trading,
to maintain specific levels of net capital. Failure to maintain the required net capital may subject this subsidiary
to suspension or revocation of registration by the SEC and suspension or expulsion by FINRA and other
regulatory bodies. In addition, a change in the net capital rules, the imposition of new rules or any unusually
large charge against net capital could limit our operations that require the intensive use of capital. They could
also restrict our ability to withdraw capital from our brokerage subsidiary. Any limitation on our ability to
withdraw capital could limit our ability to pay cash dividends, repay debt and repurchase shares of our
outstanding stock. A significant operating loss or any unusually large charge against net capital could adversely
affect our ability to expand or even maintain our present levels of business, which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

INTL Capital in Dubai is also subject to minimum net capital requirements.

We are subject to risks relating to litigation and potential securities laws liability.

Many aspects of our business involve substantial risks of liability. A market maker is exposed to substantial
liability under federal and state securities laws, other federal, state and foreign laws and court decisions, as well
as rules and regulations promulgated by the SEC, FINRA and other regulatory bodies. We are also subject to the
risks of litigation and claims that may be without merit. As we intend to defend actively any such litigation,
significant legal expenses could be incurred. An adverse resolution of any future lawsuits or claims against us
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We may be subject to potentially large claims for violations of environmental laws.

Our base metals trading business may be subject to potential claims under certain federal, state and foreign
environmental laws. This business involves the purchase and sale of base metals such as lead and other
potentially hazardous materials. As part of this business, we engage third parties located both in the United States
and in other countries to acquire, store, transport and recycle used automotive and industrial batteries on our
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behalf. In the event that these third parties fail to comply with federal, state or foreign environmental laws in
handling or disposing of these batteries and other hazardous substances used in or arising from the recycling of
these batteries, we may be exposed to claims for the cost of remediating sites impacted by such improper
handling and disposal, as well as other related costs. We seek to mitigate this risk by dealing with third parties
who we believe are in compliance with applicable laws and who have established reputations in the industry.

We are subject to intense competition.

We derive most of our revenues from market-making and trading activities. The market for these services,
particularly market-making services through electronic communications gateways, is rapidly evolving and
intensely competitive. We expect competition to continue and intensify in the future. We compete primarily with
wholesale, national, and regional broker-dealers, as well as electronic communications networks. We compete
primarily on the basis of our expertise and quality of service.

A number of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical, marketing and other resources
than we have. Some of them may:

e offer alternative forms of financial intermediation as a result of superior technology and greater
availability of information

e offer a wider range of services and products than we offer
* have greater name recognition

e have more extensive customer bases

These competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or evolving opportunities and customer
requirements. They may also be able to undertake more extensive promotional activities and offer more attractive
terms to customers. Recent advances in computing and communications technology are substantially changing
the means by which market-making services are delivered, including more direct access on-line to a wide variety
of services and information. This has created demand for more sophisticated levels of customer service.
Providing these services may entail considerable cost without an offsetting increase in revenues. In addition,
current and potential competitors have established or may establish cooperative relationships or may consolidate
to enhance their services and products. New competitors or alliances among competitors may emerge and they
may acquire significant market share.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to compete effectively with current or future competitors or that
the competitive pressures we face will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
operating results.

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our charter may adversely affect the rights of holders of our
common stock and make a takeover of us more difficult.

We are organized under the laws of the State of Delaware. Certain provisions of Delaware law may have the
effect of delaying or preventing a change in control. In addition, certain provisions of our certificate of
incorporation may have anti-takeover effects and may delay, defer or prevent a takeover attempt that a
stockholder might consider in its best interest. Our certificate of incorporation authorizes the board to determine
the terms of our unissued series of preferred stock and to fix the number of shares of any series of preferred stock
without any vote or action by our stockholders. As a result, the board can authorize and issue shares of preferred
stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting or other rights of holders of our
common stock. In addition, the issuance of preferred stock may have the effect of delaying or preventing a
change of control, because the rights given to the holders of a series of preferred stock may prohibit a merger,
reorganization, sale, liquidation or other extraordinary corporate transaction.
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Our stock price is subject to volatility.

The market price of our common stock has been and can be expected to be subject to fluctuation as a result
of a variety of factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:

* actual or anticipated variations in our results of operations

e announcements of new products by us or our competitors

e technological innovations by us or our competitors

e changes in earnings estimates or buy/sell recommendations by financial analysts

e the operating and stock price performance of other companies

e general market conditions or conditions specific in specific markets

e conditions or trends affecting our industry or the economy generally

e announcements relating to strategic relationships or acquisitions

» risk factors and uncertainties set forth elsewhere in this Form 10-K

Because of this volatility, we may fail to meet the expectations of our stockholders or of securities analysts,

and the trading prices of our common stock could decline as a result. In addition, any negative change in the
public’s perception of the securities industry could depress our stock price regardless of our operating results.

Future sales by existing stockholders could depress the market price of our common stock.

If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the market price of
our common stock could fall. Such sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the
future at a time and price that we deem appropriate.

Two of our officers, Sean O’Connor and Scott Branch, have agreed to restrict the sale of the shares of our
common stock owned by them. They beneficially own 1,863,665 outstanding shares, or 20.9% of the total shares
outstanding as of September 30, 2008. These restrictions will expire upon the repayment of our senior
subordinated convertible notes. The agreement contains several exceptions which permit each officer to sell these
shares in limited amounts and/or under limited circumstances. These exceptions include the ability to sell up to
20,000 shares in each calendar quarter, plus additional shares in any period provided certain pricing or other
conditions are satisfied.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

We have received no written comments regarding our periodic or current reports from the staff of the SEC
that were issued 180 days or more preceding the end of our fiscal year 2008 that remain unresolved.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
The Company maintains offices in:
e the United States, in New York, Altamonte Springs, Fort Lauderdale and Miami
* Argentina, in Buenos Aires
e Brazil, in Sao Paulo

e Uruguay, in Montevideo
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e the United Kingdom, in London
¢ the United Arab Emirates, in Dubai

e Singapore
We lease all of our office space except for the space in Buenos Aires, which we own.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is not currently a defendant in any legal proceedings. In light of the nature of the Company’s
activities, it is possible that the Company may be involved in litigation in the future, which could have a material
adverse impact on the Company and its financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2008.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The Company’s common stock is listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (“NASDAQ”), under the
symbol “IAAC.” The Company’s stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Market. As of September 30, 2008, there
were 104 registered holders of the Company’s common stock. The high and low common stock sales prices per
share were as follows:

Price Range

_High —_Low

2008:
Fourth Quarter . ......... ... i $37.74  $18.11
Third QUarter . .. ...ttt e e $32.68  $21.78
Second QUATLET . .. ..o\ttt $28.77  $21.48
First Quarter .. ..........tini it $31.11  $24.46

2007:
Fourth Quarter . ......... ... e $26.79  $20.41
Third QUarter . .. ...ttt e e $28.35  $20.52
Second QUATLET . .. ..o\ttt $29.62  $15.36
First Quarter .. ..........tini it $49.53  $21.41

On November 29, 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors renewed the Company’s share repurchase
authorization for an increased amount of $5 million in shares of the Company’s common stock. Subsequent to
September 30, 2008, the Company repurchased 11,257 shares under this authorization at a weighted average
price of $10.52. On November 20, 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors renewed the Company’s share
repurchase authorization for $5 million in shares of the Company’s common stock.

The Company has never declared any cash dividends on its common stock, and does not currently have any
plans to pay dividends on its common stock. The payment of cash dividends in the future is subject to the
discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend on the Company’s earnings, financial condition, capital
requirements and other relevant factors.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial and operating data are derived from our consolidated financial statements
and should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations, included in Item 7 and our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8.

Selected Summary Financial Information (GAAP)

(In millions, except share and per share numbers) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Operating revenues . ................... 1274 $ 536 $ 359 % 26.1 $ 22.0
Interestexpense . ..................... 11.2 94 2.1 1.3 32
Non-interest expenses:
- Compensation ...................... 40.0 30.4 16.7 11.0 8.5
-Clearing . ......... ... .. . . .. ... 15.5 11.8 7.7 6.5 5.9
-Other ... ... 13.1 7.7 4.1 32 2.5
Income before taxes .............. 47.6 5.7 5.3 4.1 1.9
Taxes ... 18.0 (2.0) 1.7 1.5 2.0
Minority interest ..................... 0.4 0.6 0.1 — —
Income from continuing operations . .. 29.2 4.3) 3.5 2.6 0.1
Discontinued operations ............... 1.4 0.2 — — —
Netincome ...................... 278 $ 4.5 $ 35 $ 26 $ (0.1)
Earnings per share:
-Basic ... 330 $ 0.56) $ 045 % 036 $ (0.02)
-Diluted . ... 295 % 0.56) $ 041 % 033 $ (0.02)
Number of shares:
-Basic ... 8,434,976 8,086,837 7,636,808 7,303,065 5,090,304
-Diluted .. ... 9,901,766 8,086,837 8,387,761 8,023,891 5,090,304
Selected Balance Sheet Information:
Totalassets ...................... 4380 $ 3612 % 1999 $ 1470 $ 67.7
Convertiblenotes . . ................ 16.8 $ 249 % 269 $ — $ —
Stockholders’ equity . .............. 748 $ 356 $ 339 $ 281 $ 24.6

18



Pro Forma Adjusted Financial Information (non-GAAP) (UNAUDITED)

(In millions, except employee count and ratios) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
As reported on a GAAP basis:

OPETANG TEVENUES . .« + v\ e ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e et e e et e e e $127.4  $53.6 $359 $26.1 $22.0
NELINCOME . ..ottt et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $278 $45 $35 $26 $(0.1)
Income from continuing OPerations . ..................uuuunnnneeeiinunnnnnnn.. $ — $— $— $26 $0.D
StocKhOIdErs”™ €QUILY . . ..ottt et e e e e e $ 748 $35.6 $33.9 $28.1 $24.6
Marked-to-market basis (unaudited, pro forma, non-GAAP):

Adjusted Operating TEVENUES . . . . v vttt ettt ettt et et e e et $100.5 $77.0 $43.4 $26.1 $22.0
Adjusted, pro forma income from continuing operations . .......................... $ 124 $103 $82 $26 $(0.1)
Adjusted, pro forma net iNCOME . . .. ...ttt $ 11.0 $10.1 $82 $26 $(0.1)
Adjusted EBITDA ... o $ 277 $267 $150 $51 $5.1
Adjusted stockholders’ EqUILY . . .. ..ot e $ 773 $549 $38.7 $28.1 $24.6
Adjusted return on average equity ... ........ ... 16.6% 21.7% 24.6% 9.9% (0.6)%

The following marked-to-market adjustments were made to the GAAP basis numbers shown above (unaudited, pro forma,
non-GAAP management data):

Net change in unrealized fair market value gain in physical commodities inventory .. ... $(28.3) $245 $ 6.0
Other marked-to-market adjustments .. ........ ... it 1.4 (1.1 1.5
Gross marked-to-market adjustment . .. ... ... (26.9) 234 7.5
Pro forma tax effect at 37.5% . .. ... ... i 10.1 (8.8) (2.8)
After tax marked-to-market adjustment . ............ ... i $(16.8) $14.6 $ 4.7
Cumulative after tax adjustment . .. ... ...ttt ettt $ 25 $193 § 47
Reconciliation of net income to adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP)
NEtINCOME . .\ v vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e $ 278 $@45) $35 $26 $(0.1)
MINOTItY INTETESLS . . o . vttt et e e e e e e e e e 0.4 0.6 0.1 — —
INCOME LAX . . oottt e e e e e 17.1 (2.0) 1.8 1.5 2.0
Depreciation and amortization .. ........... ...ttt 1.2 0.8 0.4 0.3 0.2
INEEIeSt EXPEISE . . . o v\ vttt et e e e e e 11.2 9.3 2.1 1.3 32
INLErest iNCOME . . . ..ottt et e e e e e e e e e e 3.1) (09 (©4 (©0.6) (0.2
Change in unrealized fair market value gain in physical commodities inventory ........ (28.3) 245 6.0 — —
Other marked-to-market adjustments .. .............. . i 1.4 (1.1) 1.5 — —
Adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP) $ 27.7 $26.7 $150 $51 $ 5.1
Other Data:
Employees . . ..o 195 170 89 67 51
Compensation and benefits / adjusted operating revenues . ..................... 39.8% 39.5% 38.5% 42.1% 38.6%
Leverage ratio: Total assets : Equity .. ........... o .. 59 10.1 59 5.2 2.8

As discussed in previous filings and elsewhere in this Form 10-K, the requirements of accounting principles
generally accepted in the U.S. (“GAAP”) to carry derivatives at fair market value but physical commodities
inventory at the lower of cost or market value have a significant temporary impact on our reported earnings.
Under GAAP, gains and losses on commodities inventory and derivatives which the Company intends to be
offsetting are often recognized in different periods. Additionally, GAAP does not require us to reflect changes in
estimated values of forward commitments to purchase and sell commodities.

For these reasons, management assesses the Company’s operating results on a marked-to-market basis.
Management relies on these adjusted operating results to evaluate the performance of the Company’s
commodities business segment and its personnel.

Under “Marked-to-market basis” in the tables above and below are the Company’s adjusted operating
revenues, pro forma income from continuing operations, pro forma net income, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted
stockholders’ equity, which have been adjusted to reflect the marked-to-market differences in the Company’s
commodities business during each period (in the case of operating revenues and net income) and the cumulative
differences (in the case of stockholders’ equity). The Company has also included the estimated tax liability which
would have been incurred as a result of these adjustments, utilizing a blended tax rate of 37.5%.
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Pro Forma Quarterly Adjusted Financial Information (non-GAAP) (UNAUDITED)

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 02 Q1 04 Q3 Q2 QI

(In millions) 2008 2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006 2006
As reported on a GAAP basis:
Operating revenues ................ $21.8 $309 $ 327 $42.0 $20.1 $ 9.5 $14.8 $ 92 $ 4.4 $14.1 $9.0 $ 84
Income from continuing operations .... $ 22 $ 72 $ 6.7 $13.1 $02 $3.7)$ 06 $(1.4)$(2.00$ 33 $ 1.1 $ 1.1
Netineome . ... ovvvnneeeennnn... $ 218% 68% 60$129$0.1 $3.8)$ 06 $(1.4)$2.0$33$ 1.1 $ 1.1
Stockholders’ equity ............... $ 748 $ 645 $ 57.1 $49.9 $35.6 $353 $37.1 $35.5 $33.9 $35.9 $31.0 $29.7
Marked-to-market basis (unaudited, pro forma, non-GAAP):
Adjusted operating revenues ......... $ 184 $ 232 $ 302 $28.7 $24.8 $18.7 $18.1 $15.4 $11.8 $12.1 $10.3 $ 9.3
Adjusted, pro forma income from

continuing operations ............. $ — $ 243% 51 8% 49$31%$20827$258%$26%$20%$20816
Adjusted, pro forma net income . . .... $ 0.1HS$ 209% 44 9% 47 $303$19$27$258$26%$208$208%16
Adjusted EBITDA ................. $ (058% 6.1 $106 $11.5$89 $60$63$55%44 %4089 368% 30
Adjusted stockholders’ equity ... ..... $ 773 $ 692 $ 66.6 $61.0 $54.9 $51.7 $47.8 $44.1 $38.6 $36.0 $32.4 $30.2
Trailing twelve months on marked-to-market basis (unaudited, pro forma, non-GAAP):
Adjusted operating revenues . ........ $100.5 $106.9 $102.4 $90.3 $77.0 $64.0 $57.4 $49.6 $43.5
Adjusted, pro forma net income . . .... $ 110 $ 141 $ 140 $12.3 $10.1 $9.7 $98 $9.1 $ 82
Adjusted EBITDA ................. $ 277 $ 37.1 $ 37.0 $32.7 $26.7 $22.2 $20.2 $17.5 $15.0
Adjusted return on average equity . . . .. 16.6% 232% 24.5% 23.5% 21.7% 22.3% 24.5% 24.2% 24.5%

The following marked-to-market adjustments were made to the GAAP basis numbers shown above (unaudited, pro
forma, non-GAAP management data):
Net change in unrealized fair market

value gain in physical commodities

117 1170) o $ 2.0)$123)% 2.3 $(16.3)$ 7.3 $10.7 $ 1.6 $49 $ 60 $(1.3)$ 1.1 $02
Other marked-to-market adjustments . . (1.4) 4.6 “4.8) 3.0 (2.6) (1.5 1.7 1.3 1.4 (.79 02 0.7
Gross marked-to-market adjustment . . . 34 (7.7 @5 (133) 47 92 33 62 74 (20 13 09
Pro forma tax effect at 37.5% ........ 1.2 2.9 0.9 51 (1.8) (3.5 (1.2) (23) (2.8) 0.7 (04 (0.4
After tax marked-to-market

adjustment ..................... $ 22)% 48)% (16)% 82)$29 $57 $21 $39 %46 $(1.3)$09 $05
Cumulative after tax adjustment ... ... $ 25% 47 3% 95 $11.1 $193 $164 $10.7 $ 86 $ 47 $0.1 $14 $ 05
Reconciliation of net income to adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP)

Netincome .............c.coovun.n.. $ 21 8% 6883 60 %129 $0.1 $3.8)$06 $(1.4$2.0%$33 $ 1.1 $ 1.1
Minority interests .................. (1.1) 0.2 0.5 08 02 01 0.1 02 01 — — —
Incometax ....................... — 4.6 4.3 82 03 (.0 05 (0.8 (1.5 20 07 05
Depreciation and amortization . . . .. ... 0.4 0.3 0.2 03 04 02 01 01 01 01 01 0.1
Interest expense . .................. 2.9 2.5 2.8 30 36 25 1.7 15 05 06 05 05
Interestincome .. .................. (1.4) (0.6) (079 (©4) (04 (0.2) (0.1) (0.2) 0.2) — (0.1) (0.1)

Change in unrealized fair market value
gain in physical commodities

1IN 1170) o P (2.0) (12.3) 23 (163) 73 107 1.7 48 60 (13 1.1 02
Other marked-to-market adjustments . . (1.4) 4.6 4.8) 3.0 (2.6) (1.5 1.7 1.3 1.4 (0.7 02 0.7
Adjusted EBITDA (non-GAAP) ... .. $ 05% 61 % 106 $11.5 $89 $60 $63 $559%44$40 8% 36 % 3.0

Adjusted operating revenues, adjusted net income, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted stockholders’ equity are
financial measures that are not recognized by GAAP, and should not be considered as alternatives to operating
revenues, net income or stockholders’ equity calculated under GAAP or as an alternative to any other measures
of performance derived in accordance with GAAP. The Company has included these non-GAAP financial
measures because it believes that they permit investors to make more meaningful comparisons of performance
between the periods presented. In addition, these non-GA AP measures are used by management in evaluating the
Company’s performance.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Operations

Set forth below is the Company’s discussion of the results of its operations, as viewed by management, for
the fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. This discussion refers to both GAAP results and adjusted
marked-to-market information, in accordance with the information presented in Item 6, ‘Selected Financial
Data’. For the international equities, international debt capital markets, foreign exchange trading and asset
management segments, there are no differences between the GAAP results and the adjusted marked-to-market
results. Only the commodities trading segment has differences between the GAAP results and the adjusted
marked-to-market results. However, this means that there are differences between the GAAP basis and
marked-to-market basis total operating revenues, total contribution and net income. Please note that any term
below that contains the word ‘adjusted’ refers to non-GAAP, marked-to-market information.

Financial Overview

The following table shows an overview of our financial results.

(in millions)

% %
Year Ended September 30, 2008 Change 2007 Change 2006
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW
Adjusted total operating revenues (non-GAAP) .............. $100.5 31% $77.0 77% $43.4
INterest eXPenSe . . .« .v vttt 112 19% 94 348% 2.1
Net revenues (non-GAAP) ......... ... ... ... ...... 89.3 32% 67.6 64% 41.3
NON-INLETeSt EXPENSES « + v v vt v et et e e et ene 68.6  37% 499  15% 28.5
Income before income tax and minority interest (non-
GAAP) .. 20.7 17% 17.7 38% 12.8
Pro forma income tax expense (non-GAAP) ................ 7.9 16% 6.8 51% 4.5
Minority interest in income of consolidated entities . .......... 04  (B3)% 06 500% 0.1
Income from continuing operations . .................. 12.4 20% 103 26% 8.2
Loss from discontinued operations, net of taxes .............. 1.4 @% 0.2 n/_m —
Pro forma net income (non-GAAP) ................... $ 11.0 9% $10.1 _23% $ 8.2
Reconciliation of operating revenues from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
Total operating revenues, (GAAP) ............ ... . ... .. $127.4 $53.6 $35.9
Gross marked to market adjustment ................... (26.9) 23.4 7.5
Operating revenues (non-GAAP) ......................... $100.5 $77.0 $43.4
Reconciliation of income tax expense from GAAP to pro forma, non-GAAP numbers:
Income tax expense (benefit) (GAAP) ..................... $ 18.0 $(2.0) $ 1.7
Pro forma taxes on gross marked to market adjustment at
BT5% .o (10.1) 8.8 2.8
Pro forma income tax expense (non-GAAP) ................ $ 79 $ 6.8 $ 45

2008 Operating Revenues vs. 2007 Operating Revenues

The Company’s operating revenues under GAAP for 2008 and 2007 were $127.4 million and $53.6 million,
respectively. The Company’s adjusted operating revenues were $100.5 million in 2008, 31% higher than the
operating revenues of $77.0 in 2007. This was attributable to adjusted operating revenue increases of 69% in
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foreign exchange trading, 62% in commodities trading and 23% in equities market-making, offset by decreases
of 33% in debt capital markets and 13% in asset management. Our trading and market-making segments
generally performed well throughout the year, with the equities and foreign exchange trading businesses both
experiencing a strong fourth quarter and the commodities trading business performing very well in the first half
of the year. However, total adjusted operating revenues during the second half of the year and particularly in the
fourth quarter were adversely affected by losses in the asset management segment. These arose as a result of
reduced investment advisory fees and marked-to-market losses on the Company’s seed capital investments,
directly related to redemptions from funds under management and to declining values of assets as the global
financial crisis gathered pace. The Company’s assets under management in the asset management segment
increased from $1.3 billion at September 30, 2007 to $2.3 billion at June 30, 2008 but then declined to $1.2
billion by September 30, 2008. The debt arrangement and placement business, accounted for in our debt capital
markets segment, was also adversely affected by a sharp reduction in investment appetite during the year. See the
segmental analysis below for additional information on activity in each of the segments.

2007 Operating Revenues vs. 2006 Operating Revenues

The Company’s operating revenues under GAAP for 2007 and 2006 were $53.6 million and $35.9 million,
respectively. The Company’s adjusted operating revenues were $77.0 million in 2007, 78% higher than the
operating revenues of $43.4 million in 2006. Adjusted operating revenues increased in all the Company’s
business segments: by 977% in asset management, 167% in debt capital markets, 67% in commodities trading,
53% in equities market-making and 10% in foreign exchange trading. See the segmental analysis below for
additional information on activity in each of the segments, including information on the 2006 accounting
treatment of the Company’s asset management joint venture, INTL Consilium, which helps to explain the large
increase in operating revenues in the asset management segment. Assets under management more than doubled,
from $505 million at the end of 2006 to $1.3 billion at the end of 2007. The increased adjusted operating
revenues in the commodities trading business was largely as a result of improved revenues in the precious metals
business. Increased volumes of trades drove the increased profitability in the equities market-making business.

2008 Expenses vs. 2007 Expenses

Interest expense: Interest expense increased by 19% from $9.4 million in 2007 to $11.2 million in 2008 as
a result of increased average borrowings during the year, though at lower absolute interest rates.

Non-interest expenses: The following table sets forth information concerning non-interest expenses.

(in millions)

% %
Year Ended September 30, 2008 Change 2007 Change 2006
NON-INTEREST EXPENSES
Compensation and benefits ... ............c.cuuunnnnnn.. $40.0 32% $30.4 82% $16.7
Clearing and related eXpenses . .. ...........c.oouvenenennn... 15.5 31% 11.8 53% 7.7
Other non-interest expenses
- Occupancy and equipment rental ......................... 1.5 36% 1.1 83% 0.6
- Professional fees ......... ... .. .. L 23 21% 1.9 138% 0.8
- Depreciation and amortization ............... .. .. ... ..... 1.0 25% 08 100% 0.4
- Business development . . ......... ... .. . i 2.8 65% 1.7 55% 1.1
-Insurance ... 04 33% 0.3 50% 0.2
SOther ..o 5.1 168% L9 90% 1.0
131 70% 77 8% 4.1
Total non-interest EXpenses . . . .........veuveunennenn . $68.6  37% $49.9  T5% $28.5

Non-interest expenses: Non-interest expenses increased by 37% from $49.9 million in 2007 to $68.6
million in 2008.
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Compensation and Benefits: Compensation and benefits expense grew by 32% from $30.4 million to $40.0
million. These represented 58% of total non-interest expenses in 2008, compared with 61% in 2007. Total variable
compensation paid to traders increased 37% from $13.0 million in 2007 to $17.8 million in 2008, as a result of
increased revenues. Administrative and executive bonuses, including deferred compensation expenses (a proportion
of current year bonuses allocated to restricted stock awards is deferred and expensed as vesting occurs), were $2.7
million, compared with $3.2 million in 2007. Stock option expense in 2008 was $0.8 million, compared with $0.7
million in 2007. Salaries and benefits increased 31% from $14.3 million in 2007 to $18.7 million. The number of
employees in the Company grew 15% from 170 at the end of 2007 to 195 at the end of 2008.

Clearing and Related Expenses: Clearing and related expenses increased by 31% from $11.8 million in
2007 to $15.5 million in 2008. The increase was mainly a result of increased equities volumes and commissions
paid in the foreign exchange trading business. Clearing and related expenses include bank charges, which
increased from $0.8 million in 2007 to $1.3 million in 2008. Bank charges include commitment and arrangement
fees paid to banks.

Other Non-Interest Expenses: Other non-interest expenses increased by 70% from $7.7 million in 2007 to
$13.1 million in 2008. $2.4 million of the amount in 2008 relates to the write-off of a receivable from one of the
Company’s customers. The Company provided for $1.2 million of this amount during the second fiscal quarter of
2008. Following deterioration of the value of the customer’s assets from which payment might have been
expected, the Company has decided to write off the balance of the amount owing. There was a 21% increase in
professional fees, which included fees for legal action taken against the defaulting customer referred to above,
additional fees for tax advice and increased audit fees. Business development costs increased by $1.1 million, or
65%, from $1.7 million to $2.8 million, largely as a result of establishing and building new customer bases from
offices that were set up during 2007, and additional management travel. Other increases related to the general
expansion of the Company’s business.

Provision for Taxes: The effective income tax rate on a GAAP basis was 37.8% in 2008, compared with
34.8% in 2007. This change was primarily due to changes in the geographic mix of profits or losses.

Our effective income tax rate can vary from period to period depending on, among other factors, the
geographic and business mix or our earnings, the level of our pre-tax earnings and the level of our tax credits.

Minority Interest: The minority interest in income of consolidated entities decreased from $0.6 million in
2007 to $0.4 million in 2008. This represents the minority interests in our two joint ventures, INTL Consilium
and INTL Commodities DMCC, and in INTL Gainvest Capital Uruguay S.A.

Loss from Discontinued Operations: The loss from discontinued operations was $0.2 million in 2007 and
$1.4 million in 2008. On August 1, 2008, the Company notified the employees of its Hong Kong subsidiary,
INTL Global Currencies (Asia) Ltd., of its intention to discontinue its foreign exchange margin trading
operations. As of September 30, 2008, the Company was in the process of effecting the orderly liquidation of this
subsidiary, which is expected to be completed before the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company
incurred losses before taxes of $2.4 million and $0.2 million in this subsidiary during fiscal years 2008 and 2007,
respectively. The Company expects to realize a tax benefit of $1.0 million for the 2008 fiscal year.

2007 Expenses vs. 2006 Expenses

Interest Expense: The Company’s interest expense was $9.3 million in 2007, compared to $2.1 million in
2006. The expense in 2007 included $1.9 million of interest payable to holders of the Company’s senior
subordinated convertible notes, $0.4 million of convertible note issuance expense and liquidated damages
liability amortized and charged as interest, $1.2 million of interest incurred in the Company’s equity and debt
capital markets businesses, including interest to prime brokers for managed accounts, $1.1 million of interest
paid to banks in the foreign exchange trading business, $3.8 million of interest paid in the commodities business
and $1.0 million of interest paid to banks for general borrowing purposes.
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Non-Interest Expenses: The Company’s total non-interest expenses increased by approximately 75% to
$49.9 million in 2007 from $28.5 million in 2007. The increase of approximately $21.4 million was primarily
due to higher compensation and benefit expenses, which increased by $13.7 million, or 82%, as a result of
increased variable compensation and bonuses and increased employee numbers. The balance of the increase was
attributable to costs associated with the expansion of the Company’s business.

Compensation and Benefits: The Company’s compensation and benefit expense increased 82% to $30.4
million in 2007 from $16.7 million in 2006. Variable compensation to traders increased by 102%, from $6.4
million to $13.0 million, as a result of increased revenues. Administrative and executive bonuses increased from
$2.4 million to $3.2 million. The number of employees increased by 91%, from 89 at the end of 2006 to 170 at
the end of 2007. Salaries and benefits for INTL Consilium are included in the Company’s 2006 Consolidated
Statement of Operations from August 1, 2006, the date from which the accounts of INTL Consilium were
consolidated by the Company.

Clearing and related expenses: Clearing and related expenses increased by 53% to $11.8 million in 2007
from $7.7 million in 2006, mainly as a result of increased securities activity. Securities related clearing expenses
increased by 40% to $9.4 million in 2007 from $6.7 million in 2006. Total ADR fees decreased from
approximately $2.7 million in 2006 to $2.2 million in 2007 as a result of fewer shares converted, and negotiation
of better fees. Bank charges are included in clearing and related expenses. These amounted to $0.8 million in
2007, compared to $0.6 million in 2006 and include commitment and arrangement fees paid to banks.

Other Non-Interest Expenses: Other non-interest expenses increased by 88% from $4.1 million in 2006 to
$7.7 million in 2007, mainly as a result of the expansion of the Company’s activities. The number of offices
increased from 4 at the end of 2006 to 11 at the end of 2007. The number of companies in the group increased
from 10 at the end of 2006 to 20 at the end of 2007. As mentioned above, the number of employees increased
from 89 at the end of 2006 to 170 at the end of 2007. Professional fees, in particular, which consist mainly of
legal, taxation, auditing and accounting fees, showed a large increase, from $0.8 million in 2006 to $2.3 million
in 2007, mainly as a result of the increased number of companies, initial compliance with section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, accounting fees in the asset management business and legal fees.

Provision for Taxes: The effective income tax rate on a GAAP basis was 35.1% in 2007, compared with
32.1% in 2006. This change was primarily due to changes in the geographic mix of profits or losses.

Minority Interest: The minority interest in income of consolidated entities increased from $0.1 million in
2006 to $0.6 million in 2007. In 2007 this represented the minority interests in our two joint ventures, INTL
Consilium and INTL Commodities DMCC, and in INTL Gainvest Capital Uruguay S.A. In 2006 this represented
only the minority interest in INTL Consilium.
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Segment Information: The following table sets forth information concerning the Company’s principal

business segments.

(in millions)

% %
Year Ended September 30, 2008 Change 2007 Change 2006
SEGMENTAL RESULTS
International equities market-making
= OPETAtING TEVEIIUCS .+« o o e ettt ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 339 23% $275 53% $18.0
- variable EXPENSES . . .ot 16.3 19% 13.7 57% 8.7
S CONITDULION . ..ot 17.6 28% 13.8 48% 9.3
Foreign exchange trading
= OPETAtING TEVEIURGS .« « v vttt et et e et et e e et et e e e e e e e e 23.8 68% 14.2 10% 129
S VArADIE EXPENSES .« . o vttt e e e e e s 6.1 97% 3.1 3% 3.0
S CONMITDULION . .. ettt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e 17.7 59% 11.1 12% 9.9
Commodities trading
- adjusted operating revenues (non-GAAP) ... ... .. 22.8 61% 14.2 69% 8.4
- variable EXPENSES . . .ot 4.5 61% 2.8 100% 1.4
- contribution (NON-GAAP) . . ... . 18.3 61% 114 63% 7.0
International debt capital markets
= OPETAtING TEVEIURGS .« « v vttt et et e et e e e e e et e e e e e e e e 4.3 (33)% 6.4 167% 24
S VAADIE EXPENSES .« . v vttt e e e e 0.5 (72)% 1.8 350% 0.4
S CONMEIIDULION . . .ot 3.8 (17)% 4.6 130% 2.0
Asset management
= OPETAtNG TEVEIMUEGS . ¢ v vttt et et e et et e e e e et e e e e e e 12.2 (13)% 14.0 977% 1.3
- variable EXPENSES . . .ot 2.8 65% 1.7 240% 0.5
S CONLIDULION . . .ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 9.4 24)% 12.3 1,438% 0.8
Other
= OPETAtING TEVEIUGS .« « v vttt et et e et et e e e e et e e e e e e e e 3.5 400% 0.7 75% 0.4
S VAADIE EXPENSES .+ . o vttt e e e e e 0.2 n/m 0.1 n/m —
S CONMITDULION . .. oot ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 33 450% 0.6 50% 0.4
Total Segmental Results
- operating revenues (non-GAAP) ... .. 100.5 31% 77.0 77%  43.4
- variable EXPENSES . . .ot 30.4 31% 23.2 66% 14.0
- contribution (NON-GAAP) . . ... $ 70.1 30% $53.8 83% $29.4
Reconciliation of commodities trading operating revenues from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
Total operating revenues, (GAAP) ....... ... $ 49.7 $ (9.2) $ 0.9
Gross marked to market adjustment ............ ... ... L i (26.9) 234 7.5
Operating revenues (non-GAAP) . ... ... $ 22.8 $ 142 $ 84
Reconciliation of commodities trading contribution from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
Total commodities trading contribution, (GAAP) .. ... ... ... .. ... $ 452 $(12.0) $(0.5)
Gross marked to market adjustment ............ ... ... .. o il (26.9) 234 75
Commodities trading contribution (non-GAAP) .. ... $ 183 $11.4 $ 7.0
Reconciliation of total operating revenues from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
Total operating revenues, (GAAP) ...... ... $127.4 $53.6 $35.9
Gross marked to market adjustment . ......... ... ... .. i (26.9) 234 7.5
Operating revenues (NON-GAAP) .. ... ... e $100.5 $77.0 $43.4
Reconciliation of contribution from GAAP to adjusted, non-GAAP numbers:
Total contribution, (GAAP) .. ... oo $ 97.0 $ 30.4 $21.9
Gross marked to market adjustment . ............ ... .. i (26.9) 23.4 7.5
Contribution (Nnon-GAAP) . . . ... $ 70.1 $53.8 $29.4




2008 vs. 2007 Segmental Analysis

The adjusted net contribution of all the Company’s business segments increased 30% from $53.8 million in
2007 to $70.1 million in 2008. Net contribution consists of operating revenues less direct clearing and clearing
related charges and variable compensation paid to traders. Variable compensation is paid to traders on the basis
of a fixed percentage of the aggregate of revenues less clearing and related charges, base salaries and a fixed
overhead allocation. Net contribution is one of the key measures used by management to assess the performance
of each segment.

International equities market-making — Operating revenues increased by 23% from $27.5 million in 2007
to $33.9 million in 2008. 2008 produced monthly revenues ranging from $1.7 million to $4.6 million, and an
average of $2.8 million. The volume of trades was higher in 2008 than in 2007 by approximately 60%, due to
increased customer activity. Both volumes and market volatility are the drivers of this business. Equity market-
making operating revenues include the trading profits earned by the Company before the related expense
deduction for ADR conversion fees. These ADR fees are included in the statement of operations as clearing and
related expenses.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 28% from $13.8 million to $17.6 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues decreased from 50% to 48%.

Foreign exchange trading — Operating revenues increased by 68% from $14.2 million in 2007 to $23.8
million in 2008 as the customer base expanded and the Company rolled out a system that allows customers to
place trades electronically. The profitability of this business also depends on the extent of dislocation in the
developing world currency markets in which it operates, with instability producing opportunities for greater
profitability.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 59% from $11.1 million to $17.7 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 22% to 26%, mainly as a result of
commissions paid to introducers for additional business.

Commodities trading — Operating revenues under GAAP increased from a loss of $9.2 million in 2007 to
operating revenues of $49.7 million in 2008. Adjusted operating revenues increased by 61% from $14.2 million
in 2007 to $22.8 million in 2008.

Precious metals adjusted operating revenues increased 51% from $7.0 million in 2007 to $10.6 million in
2008. Base metals adjusted operating revenues increased 69% from $7.2 million in 2007 to $12.2 million in
2008. Precious metals operating revenues have increased as a result of increased customer business and
additional business done by our Dubai joint venture and from our Singapore office. Base metals operating
revenues benefited during the first half of 2008 from a disparity between the price of auto batteries, which the
Company recycles for their lead content, and the price at which it was able to sell lead to customers. With the
rapid decline in lead prices during calendar 2008, this disparity also declined to the extent that recycling became
less attractive in the second half of fiscal 2008.

The adjusted contribution attributable to this segment increased 61% from $11.4 million to $18.4 million.
Variable expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues decreased marginally from 20% to 19%.

International debt capital markets — Operating revenues decreased by 33% from $6.4 million in 2007 to
$4.3 million in 2008. The composition of the operating revenues in this segment changed between 2007 and
2008, shifting from trading revenues to fee revenues as the Company changed its focus to the arranging and
placing of debt issues and asset backed securitization. Trading revenues were $2.0 million in 2007 but negligible
in 2008. However, a sharp decline in the market’s appetite for risk during 2008 resulted in an overall decrease in
operating revenue.
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The contribution attributable to this segment decreased 17% from $4.6 million to $3.8 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues decreased from 28% to 12%, as a result of a decrease
in variable compensation.

Asset management — The Company’s asset management segment revenues include management and
performance fees, commissions and other revenues received by the Company for management of third party
assets and investment gains or losses on the Company’s investments in registered funds or proprietary accounts
managed either by the Company’s investment managers or by independent investment managers. The Company
has invested in registered funds in order to provide seed capital. In addition, a proprietary account managed by
the Company’s asset management joint venture, INTL Consilium, was established to produce a track record for
the launch of a fund specializing in African investments. This fund, the Legacy Greater Africa Alpha Fund,
advised by INTL Consilium, was established in July 2008 with an initial $25 million investment by an African
bank.

Operating revenues decreased by 13% from $14.0 million in 2007 to $12.2 million in 2008. Total operating
revenues in this segment were $16.2 million for the nine months to June 30, 2008. Redemptions from and losses
in funds managed by the Company during the fourth quarter of 2008 reduced total third party assets under
management in this segment from $2.3 billion at June 30, 2008 to $1.2 billion at September 30, 2008.
Performance in the funds did not meet required hurdles and there was a reversal of performance fees previously
accrued. Management fees were earned on a lower asset base. The Company also suffered marked-to-market
losses in its proprietary investments (investments in registered funds and the proprietary account referred to
above) of $4.2 million during the fourth quarter of 2008. The fair value of the Company’s proprietary
investments was $37.9 million at September 30, 2008 and $33.4 million at September 30, 2007.

The contribution attributable to this segment decreased by 24% from $12.3 million to $9.4 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 12% to 23% as a result of increases in
fund accounting expenses.

2007 vs. 2006 Segmental Analysis

The adjusted net contribution of all the Company’s business segments increased 82% from $29.5 million in
2006 to $53.8 million in 2007.

International equities market-making — Operating revenues increased 53% to $27.5 million in 2007 from
$18.0 million in 2006. Volumes increased as a result of increasingly favorable market conditions. Revenues in
each quarter of 2007 were higher than the best quarter of 2006, with the second and fourth quarters of 2007 being
particularly strong.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 48% from $9.3 million to $13.8 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 48% to 50%.

Foreign exchange trading — Operating revenues in this segment increased 10% to $14.2 million in 2007
from $12.9 million in 2006. This was largely due to a good fourth quarter result, with performance through the
third quarter in 2007 lagging behind that of 2006. The Company focused on further expanding its customer base
during the year and benefited in the fourth quarter from volatile conditions in some of the Company’s markets.
Foreign exchange operating revenues decreased from 36% of total revenue in 2006 to 27% in 2007.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 12% from $9.9 million to $11.1 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues decreased marginally from 23% to 22%.

Commodities trading — Operating revenues under GAAP decreased from $0.9 million in 2006 to a loss of
$9.3 million in 2007. Adjusted operating revenues increased by 67% from $8.5 million to $14.2 million.
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Precious metals adjusted operating revenues increased 268% from $1.9 million in 2006 to $7.0 million in
2007. This was as a result of expanding our platinum group metals activities, volatility in precious metals prices
and increased physical business as the Dubai joint venture became established.

Base metals adjusted operating revenues increased by 9% from $6.6 million in 2006 to $7.2 million in 2007.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 61% from $7.1 million to $11.4 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 16% to 20%.

International debt capital markets — Operating revenues increased 167% to $6.4 million in 2007 from
$2.4 million in 2006. Debt capital markets operating revenues increased to 12% of total operating revenues in
2007 from 6% in 2006. The principal reason for this increase was the expansion of the Company’s debt
origination business. The Company substantially enhanced its ability to originate and structure corporate debt
transactions in 2007 with the recruitment of experienced individuals in New York and Miami. The Company also
benefited from the acquisition of INTL Gainvest in May 2007, which actively participates in the domestic asset-
backed securitization markets in Argentina and Brazil. Total fee income from these activities was $3.8 million.
The Company’s debt trading business has been adversely affected by decreasing spreads and volumes over the
past two years. TRACE, FINRA’s bond trade tracking system, has introduced greater transparency into the
markets and has contributed to the reduced spreads. Debt trading and related revenues increased to $2 million in
2007 from $1.1 million in 2006, with gains on proprietary trading making up for reduced activity in secondary
market customer trading. Trade finance revenues decreased to $0.6 million in 2007 from $1.2 million in 2006 as
the focus in this business shifted to the establishment and management of the INTL Trade Finance Fund Limited
in February 2007, which primarily invests in global trade finance-related assets.

The contribution attributable to this segment increased 130% from $2.0 million to $4.6 million. Variable
expenses expressed as a percentage of operating revenues increased from 17% to 28% as a result of increased
variable compensation.

Asset management — The Company separately disclosed the results of the asset management segment of its
business for the first time in 2007. Commencing on August 1, 2006 the Company consolidated the accounts of
INTL Consilium, the Company’s asset management joint venture. INTL Consilium’s results had been accounted
for on the equity method prior to that date. The Company owns a 50.1% interest in INTL Consilium. The
Company has a wholly-owned subsidiary, INTL Capital, which commenced business as an investment adviser to
the INTL Trade Finance Fund in February 2007. INTL Gainvest, acquired in May 2007, also conducts an asset
management business.

Operating revenues in this segment were $14.0 million in 2007, compared with $1.3 million in 2006. These
amounts are not directly comparable because INTL Consilium’s results were consolidated only for the last two
months of fiscal 2006. Total third party assets under management at September 30, 2007 were $1.3 billion
(including approximately $16 million invested by the Company and $60 million invested by one of the
Company’s principal shareholders), compared with $505 million at September 30, 2006 (including
approximately $5 million invested by the Company and $100 million invested by one of the Company’s principal
shareholders. The latter amount was redeemed in full during the 2008 fiscal year). Also included in the operating
revenues of this segment are the gains in a proprietary account managed by INTL Consilium that was valued at
$9.4 million at September 30, 2007.
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Variable vs. Fixed Expenses

(in millions)

% of % of % of
Year Ended September 30, 2008 Total 2007 Total 2006 Total
VARIABLE vs. FIXED EXPENSES
Variable expenses allocated to segments ... ................... $30.4  44% $23.2  47% $14.0  49%
Administrative and executive bonuses .. ............ .. ... 2.5 4% 3.0 6% 24 9%
Baddebts ...... ... 24 3% 01 0% — 0%
Total variable expenses . .............o.vriiinennenan.. 353  51% 263 53% 164  58%
Fixed eXpenses .. .....ouvrin i e 333 49% 23.6 47% 12.1  42%
Total non-interest EXpPenses . .. ... .....c..euuernenneeneennn.. $68.6  100% $49.9 100% $28.5 100%

The Company aims to make its non-interest expenses variable to the greatest extent possible, and to keep its
fixed costs as low as possible. The table above shows an analysis of the Company’s total non-interest expenses
for 2006, 2007 and 2008. Variable expenses consist of clearing and clearing related expenses, variable
compensation paid to traders, bonuses paid to operational, administrative and managerial employees and bad debt
expenses. As a percentage of total non-interest expenses, variable expenses have declined from 58% in 2006 to
51% in 2008. This is a result of a growing infrastructure and employee base. Monthly fixed costs have remained
stable since February 2008.

Liquidity, Financial Condition and Capital Resources

The Company continuously reviews its overall capital needs to ensure that its capital base, both
stockholders’ equity and debt, can appropriately support the anticipated capital needs of its operating
subsidiaries.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had total equity capital of $74.8 million, convertible subordinated
notes of $16.8 million, and bank loans of $119.8 million.

A substantial portion of the Company’s assets are liquid. At September 30, 2008, approximately 96% of the
Company’s assets consisted of cash, cash equivalents, receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing
organization, customer receivables, marketable financial instruments and investments, and physical commodities
inventory, at cost. All assets are financed by the Company’s equity capital, convertible subordinated notes, bank
loans, short-term borrowings from financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, and other payables.

The Company’s assets and liabilities may vary significantly from period to period due to changing customer
requirements, economic and market conditions and the growth of the Company. The Company’s total assets at
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007, were $438.0 million and $361.2 million, respectively. The
Company’s operating activities generate or utilize cash as a result of net income or loss earned or incurred during
each period and fluctuations in its assets and liabilities. The most significant fluctuations arise from changes in
the level of customer activity, commodities prices and changes in the balances of financial instruments and
commodities inventory. Additionally, in fiscal 2008 the Company consolidated the assets and liabilities of the
INTL Consilium Convertible Arbitrage Fund for the first time — see Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements — which had the effect of adding $77.4 million of assets and $57.3 million of liabilities to the
Company’s balance sheet at September 30, 2008.

Approximately $35 million of the Company’s financial instruments owned and sold, not yet purchased, are
exchangeable foreign equities and American Depositary Receipts.

As of September 30, 2007 the Company had bank facilities of $185 million, of which $85.1 million was
outstanding. As of September 30, 2008 the Company had bank facilities of $200 million, of which $119.8 million
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was outstanding. During the year, the Company’s subsidiary, INTL Commodities, renewed its revolving
syndicated loan facility for an amount of $125 million. This facility is committed until June 27, 2009. The
Company’s subsidiary, INTL Global Currencies Limited, increased its $20 million facility to $25 million,
committed until December 31, 2009. The Company increased its own $25 million facility to $35 million, also
committed until December 31, 2009. The Company’s Dubai joint venture, INTL Commodities DMCC, has a $15
million uncommitted facility. The facility agreements contain covenants relating to financial measures such as
minimum net worth, minimum working capital and minimum interest coverage ratios. The Company is in
compliance with all of its covenants.

INTL Trading, the Company’s broker-dealer subsidiary, is subject to the net capital requirements of the SEC
relating to liquidity and net capital levels. At September 30, 2008, INTL Trading had regulatory net capital of
$1,500,000, which was $500,000 in excess of its minimum net capital requirement of $1,000,000.

The Company’s ability to receive distributions from INTL Trading is restricted by regulations of the SEC.
The Company’s right to receive distributions from its subsidiaries is also subject to the rights of the subsidiaries’
creditors, including customers of INTL Trading. During 2008 INTL Trading paid dividends of $6.7 million to the
Company.

In September 2006 the Company completed a private placement of $27 million of 7.625% subordinated
convertible notes (‘the Notes’). The Notes mature in September 2011. They are convertible at any time at the
option of the noteholder at a current conversion price of $25.47 per share. The Notes contain customary anti-
dilutive provisions. During the 2006 fiscal year, $2 million in principal amount of the Notes, together with
accrued interest, were converted into a total of 79,562 shares of common stock of the Company. During the 2008
fiscal year, approximately $8.2 million in principal amount of the Notes, together with accrued interest, were
converted into a total of 325,755 shares of common stock of the Company, leaving $16.8 million in principal
amount of Notes outstanding. At the current conversion price, conversion would result in the issue of 661,295
new shares of common stock. The Company may require conversion at any time if the dollar volume-weighted
average share price exceeds 150%, or $38.25 at the initial conversion price, for 20 out of any 30 consecutive
trading days. Noteholders may redeem their Notes at par if the interest coverage ratio set forth in the Notes is less
than 2.75 for the twelve-month period ending December 31, 2009. The Company may redeem the Notes at 110%
of par on March 11, 2010.

Effective May 2007, the Company acquired a group of companies (together ‘INTL Gainvest’) that conduct a
specialist local markets securitization and asset management business in South America. In addition to the initial
purchase price, the Company agreed to make a further payment to the sellers of INTL Gainvest on June 1, 2008
equal to 25% of the aggregate revenues of INTL Gainvest earned in the year to April 30, 2008; and a further
payment on June 1, 2009 equal to 25% of the aggregate revenues of INTL Gainvest earned in the year to
April 30, 2009. The revenues on which the 25% is calculated was subject to a minimum threshold and a
maximum ceiling of $3.7 million and $10 million in the first year and $5.5 million and $11 million in the second
year, respectively. On June 1, 2008 the Company paid $1.4 million to the sellers of INTL Gainvest. INTL
Gainvest’s revenues in the five months between May 1 and September 30, 2008 had not yet reached $5.5 million
and, accordingly, no accrual has been made for deferred acquisition consideration at September 30, 2008.

INTL Capital, the Company’s Dubai asset management subsidiary, is regulated by the Dubai Financial
Services Authority and is subject to a minimum capital requirement which at September 30, 2008, was
approximately $500,000.

The Company established INTL Global Currencies (Asia) to conduct a margin foreign exchange trading
business in Hong Kong. INTL Global Currencies (Asia) was granted its license by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. The Company invested $3.8 million in INTL
Global Currencies (Asia) in order to meet the minimum capital requirements imposed by the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Commission and made a $1 million subordinated loan facility available to it during 2008.
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INTL Global Currencies (Asia) did not become profitable, as a result of which the Company decided to close the
business with effect from August 1, 2008. The Company has recorded a loss of $1.4 million after provision for an
expected tax benefit under discontinued operations in its Consolidated Income Statement relating to the losses
incurred by INTL Global Currencies (Asia).

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents increased from approximately $53.7 million at September 30,
2007 to approximately $62.8 million at September 30, 2008, a net increase of approximately $9.1 million. Net
cash of $28.6 million was used in operating activities, $1.1 million was provided by investing activities and net
cash of $37.4 million was provided by financing activities, of which approximately $34.7 million was from banks
and approximately $2.7 million from the exercise of stock options and tax benefits on stock options exercised.
Fluctuations in exchange rates had a negative effect of $0.8 million on the Company’s cash and cash equivalents.

The Company is continuously evaluating opportunities to expand its business. Expansion of the Company’s
activities will require funding and will have an effect on liquidity.

Apart from what has been disclosed above, there are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have had
or are likely to have a material impact on the liquidity, financial condition and capital resources of the Company.

Commitments

Information about the Company’s commitments and contingent liabilities is contained in Note 16 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s senior subordinated convertible notes, as described in note 2 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, are due in September 2011 if they are not converted or redeemed prior to
their due date.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company is party to certain financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of
business as a registered securities broker-dealer and from its market making and proprietary trading in the foreign
exchange and commodities trading business. As part of these activities, the Company carries short positions. For
example, it sells financial instruments that it does not own, borrows the financial instruments to make good
delivery, and therefore is obliged to purchase such financial instruments at a future date in order to return the
borrowed financial instruments. The Company has recorded these obligations in the consolidated financial
statements at September 30, 2008 at fair value of the related financial instruments, totaling $159.0 million. These
positions are held to offset the risks related to financial assets owned and reported on the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets under ‘Financial instruments owned, at fair value’, ‘Physical commodities
inventory, at cost’ and ‘Trust certificates, at fair value’. The Company will incur losses if the fair value of the
financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, increases subsequent to September 30, 2008, which might be
partially or wholly offset by gains in the value of assets held at September 30, 2008. The total of $159.0 million
includes a liability of $20.0 million for derivatives, based on their market value as of September 30, 2008.

Listed below are the fair values of trading-related derivatives as of September 30, 2008 and September 30,
2007. Assets represent net unrealized gains and liabilities represent net unrealized losses.

September 30, 2008 2007

(In millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Equity index derivatives . .............iiriiiiii i $18 $02 $01 $—
Interest rate derivatives ... ...ttt e — 0.5 — —
Commodity price derivatives . . .......o.uutn i, 29.7 12.6 66.7 72.6

$31.5 $133  $66.8 $72.6
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Options and futures contracts held by the Company result from market-making and proprietary trading
activities in the Company’s foreign exchange/commodities trading business segment. The Company assists its
customers in its commodities business to protect the value of their future production (precious or base metals) by
selling them put options on an OTC basis. The Company also provides its commodities customers with
sophisticated option products, including combinations of buying and selling puts and calls. The Company
mitigates its risk by effecting offsetting options with market counterparties or through the purchase or sale of
exchange traded commodities futures. The risk mitigation of offsetting options is not within the documented
hedging designation requirements of FAS 133.

Derivative contracts are traded along with cash transactions because of the integrated nature of the markets
for such products. The Company manages the risks associated with derivatives on an aggregate basis along with
the risks associated with its proprietary trading and market-making activities in cash instruments as part of its
firm-wide risk management policies.

Effects of Inflation

The Company’s assets are not significantly affected by inflation because they are, to a large extent, liquid in
nature. Increases in the Company’s expenses, such as compensation and benefits, clearing and related expenses,
occupancy and equipment rental, due to inflation, may not be readily recoverable from increasing the prices of
services offered by the Company. In addition, to the extent that inflation results in rising interest rates or has
other adverse effects on the financial markets and on the value of financial instruments, currency and
commodities positions, it may adversely affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The
Company believes that, of its significant accounting policies, those described below may, in certain instances,
involve a high degree of judgment and complexity. These critical accounting policies may require estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses reported in the consolidated
financial statements. Due to their nature, estimates involve judgment based upon available information. Actual
results or amounts could differ from estimates and the difference could have a material impact on the
consolidated financial statements. Therefore, understanding these policies is important in understanding the
reported results of operations and the financial position of the Company.

Valuation of Financial Instruments and Foreign Currencies. Substantially all financial instruments are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value. These
financial instruments include: cash, cash equivalents, and financial instruments purchased under agreements to
resell; deposits with clearing organizations; financial instruments owned; and financial instruments sold but not
yet purchased. Unrealized gains and losses related to these financial instruments are reflected in net earnings.
Where available, the Company uses prices from independent sources such as listed market prices, or broker or
dealer price quotations. Fair values for certain derivative contracts are derived from pricing models that consider
current market and contractual prices for the underlying financial instruments or commodities, as well as time
value and yield curve or volatility factors underlying the positions. In some cases, even though the value of a
security is derived from an independent market price or broker or dealer quote, certain assumptions may be
required to determine the fair value. However, these assumptions may be incorrect and the actual value realized
upon disposition could be different from the current carrying value. The value of foreign currencies, including
foreign currencies sold, not yet purchased, are converted into its U.S. dollar equivalents at the foreign exchange
rates in effect at the close of business at the end of the accounting period. For foreign currency transactions
completed during each reporting period, the foreign exchange rate in effect at the time of the transaction is used.

The application of the valuation process for financial instruments and foreign currencies is critical because
these items represent a significant portion of the Company’s total assets. The accuracy of the valuation process
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allows the Company to report accurate financial information. Valuations for substantially all of the financial
instruments held by the Company are available from independent publishers of market information. The
valuation process may involve estimates and judgments in the case of certain financial instruments with limited
liquidity and over-the-counter derivatives. Given the wide availability of pricing information, the high degree of
liquidity of the majority of the Company’s assets, and the relatively short periods for which they are typically
held in inventory, there is insignificant sensitivity to changes in estimates and insignificant risk of changes in
estimates having a material effect on the Company. The basis for estimating the valuation of any financial
instruments has not undergone any change.

Revenue Recognition. Realized and unrealized trading income in securities, foreign currencies and
commodities purchased or sold for the Company’s account is recorded on a trade date basis or on validly
invoiced delivery of physical commodities. Securities owned and securities sold, not yet purchased and foreign
currencies sold, not yet purchased, are stated at market value with related changes in unrealized appreciation or
depreciation reflected in net dealer inventory and investment gains. Interest income is recorded on the accrual
basis and dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date. Fee income is recorded when the services
related to the underlying transactions are completed under the terms of the relevant contract.

The critical aspect of revenue recognition for the Company is recording all known transactions as of the
trade date of each transaction for the financial period, or validly invoiced deliveries for physical commodities.
The Company has developed systems for each of its businesses to capture all known transactions. Recording all
known transactions involves reviewing trades that occur after the financial period that relate to the financial
period. The accuracy of capturing this information is dependent upon the completeness and accuracy of the
operations systems including personnel and the Company’s clearing firm.

Physical Commodities Inventory. Physical commodities inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market
value, determined using the weighted average price method. The Company generally mitigates the price risk
associated with physical commodities held in inventory through the use of derivatives. This price risk mitigation
does not generally qualify for hedge accounting under GAAP. Any unrealized gains in physical commodities
inventory are not recognized under GAAP, but unrealized gains and losses in related derivative positions are
recognized under GAAP. As a result, the Company’s reported commodities trading earnings are subject to
volatility.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The details for recently issued accounting standards can be found under Note 1 of the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The Company conducts its market-making and trading activities predominantly as a principal, which
subjects its capital to significant risks. These risks include, but are not limited to, absolute and relative price
movements, price volatility and changes in liquidity, over which the Company has virtually no control. The
Company’s exposure to market risk varies in accordance with the volume of customer-driven market-making
transactions, the size of the proprietary positions and the volatility of the financial instruments traded.

We seek to mitigate exposure to market risk by utilizing a variety of qualitative and quantitative techniques:

e diversification of business activities and instruments

e limitations on positions

e allocation of capital and limits based on estimated weighted risks

e daily monitoring of positions and mark-to-market profitability
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The Company utilizes derivative products in a trading capacity as a dealer, to satisfy customer needs and
mitigate risk. The Company manages risks from both derivatives and non-derivative cash instruments on a
consolidated basis. The risks of derivatives should not be viewed in isolation, but in aggregate with the
Company’s other trading activities.

Management believes that the volatility of revenues is a key indicator of the effectiveness of its risk
management techniques. The graph below summarizes volatility of daily revenue during fiscal year 2008.
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In the Company’s securities market-making and trading activities, the Company maintains inventories of
equity and debt securities. In the Company’s commodities trading activities, the Company’s positions include
physical inventories, forwards, futures and options. The Company’s commodity trading activities are managed as
one consolidated book for each commodity encompassing both cash positions and derivative instruments. The
Company monitors the aggregate position for each commodity in equivalent physical weight. The table below
illustrates, for fiscal 2008, the Company’s average, greatest long, greatest short and minimum day-end positions
by business segment.

Greatest Average Greatest Greatest Average
(In millions) Gross Gross Net Long Net Short Net
Equity net of long and short ............... $14.6 $10.3 $11.1 $(2.7) $ 42
Debt......... 6.4 2.2 4.2 0.4) 1.9
Foreign Exchange ....................... 22.8 12.9 13.3 (1.6) 6.8
Commodities . ...........ouiuriineane.n. 4.1 1.8 1.7 3.7 0.9)
Asset Management (Funds & Other

Investment) .......................... n/a n/a 493 n/a 37.0
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements of International Assets Holding Corporation are as follows:

Page
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm .. ....... ... ... .. ... ... .. ......... F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets, as of September 30, 2008 and 2007 . ............ ... ..., F-3
Consolidated Income Statements, for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 . .......... .. ... ... ........ F-4
Consolidated Cash Flows Statements, for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 .. ....................... F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity, for fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006 ............... F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . ... .......... ... . . .t F-8

Management’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and related
information that are presented in this report. The consolidated financial statements, which include amounts based
on management’s estimates and judgments, have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Company designs and maintains accounting and internal
control systems to provide reasonable assurance at reasonable cost that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorized use or disposition, and that the financial records are reliable for preparing financial statements and
maintaining accountability for assets. These systems are augmented by written policies, an organizational
structure providing division of responsibilities and careful selection and training of qualified personnel.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Rothstein Kass & Company, P.C., an
independent registered public accounting firm, who conducted their audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). The independent registered public accounting
firm’s responsibility is to express an opinion as to the fairness with which such financial statements present our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

In connection with the filing of this Form 10-K, the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures as of September 30, 2008. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2008.

There were no changes in the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting during 2008 that
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting.

It should be noted that a control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. As a result, there can be no
assurance that a control system will succeed in preventing all possible instances of error and fraud. The
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their
objectives, and the conclusions of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer are made at the
“reasonable assurance” level.
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Management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and the report of Rothstein, Kass &
Company, P.C. are contained in Part I, Item 8 of this report.

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer filed with the SEC as exhibits to the
Form 10-K for the year ended September 30, 2008 and are filing as exhibits to this report, the certifications
required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A list of our executive officers and biographical information about them and our directors will be contained
in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. Information about our Audit Committee
may be found in the Proxy Statement. That information is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to the directors, officers and employees of the Company and
each of its subsidiaries. The code of ethics is publicly available on our Website at www.intlassets.com/
ethics.aspx. If we make any substantive amendments to the code of ethics or grant any waiver, including any
implicit waiver, from a provision of the code to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or Chief
Accounting Officer, we will disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on that website or in a report on
Form 8-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to this item will be contained in the Proxy Statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting
of Shareholders, which is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS
Exhibit No.
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (incorporated by reference from Form 10-QSB, as filed
with the SEC on May 17, 2004).
32 Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Quarterly Report

on Form 10-Q, filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007).

10.1 International Assets Holding Corporation Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (No. 33-70334-A), filed with the SEC on
February 2, 1994).

10.2 Amendment dated December 28, 1995, to International Assets Holding Corporation Stock Option
Plan (incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-10727),
filed with the SEC on August 23, 1996).
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Exhibit No.

10.3

104

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Amendment dated October 28, 1998, to International Assets Holding Corporation Stock Option
Plan (incorporated by reference from Company’s Proxy Statement on Form 14A, filed with the
SEC on January 15, 1999).

Amendment dated June 9, 2000, to International Assets Holding Corporation Stock Option Plan
(incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement on Form 14A, filed with the SEC
on January 12, 2001).

Employment Agreement, entered into as of October 1, 2002, between the Company and Diego J.
Veitia (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 10-KSB, as filed with the SEC on
December 30, 2002).

Consulting Agreement, entered into as of September 1, 2002, between the Company and Veitia
and Associates, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Form 10-KSB, as filed with the SEC on
December 30, 2002).

Employment Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and Sean
O’Connor (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

Employment Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and Scott Branch
(incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and Sean
O’Connor (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the
Company, and Sean O’Connor (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC
on December 10, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and Scott
Branch (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the
Company, and Scott Branch (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on
December 10, 2002).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 22, 2002, by and between the Company, and John
Radziwill (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on October 24, 2002).

First Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 6, 2002, by and between the
Company, and John Radziwill (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on
December 10, 2002).

Clearing Agreement, effective November 23, 2005, by and between the Company and Broadcort, a
division of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Form 8-
K, as filed with the SEC on December 6, 2005).

International Assets Holding Corporation 2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference from
the Company’s Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed on January 14, 2003).

Amendment to International Assets Holding Corporation 2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement on Form 14A, filed with the SEC on February 11,
2004).

Amendment to International Assets Holding Corporation 2003 Stock Option Plan (incorporated by
reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement on Form 14A, filed with the SEC on January 23,
2006).
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Exhibit No.

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

14.1

21*

23.1*
23.2%
31.1%
31.2%
32.1%

32.2%

Acquisition Agreement dated as of June 25, 2004, by and among International Assets Holding
Corporation, Global Currencies Limited, and the shareholders of Global Currencies (Holdings)
Limited (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Form 8-K, filed with the SEC on July 1,
2004).

Employment Agreement, effective December 1, 2004, by and between the Company and Brian T.
Sephton (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on November 24, 2004).

Operating Agreement dated May 7, 2004, by and between the Company and Consilium Investment
Capital, Inc. (incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on May 10, 2004).

Lease agreement dated November 24, 2005, by and between the Company and Royal & Sun
Alliance Insurance plc for the lease of office premises in London (incorporated by reference from
Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on December 1, 2005).

International Assets Holding Corporation form of Senior Subordinated Convertible Note
(incorporated by reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on September 15, 2006).

International Assets Holding Corporation form of Securities Purchase Agreement (incorporated by
reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on September 15, 2006).

International Assets Holding Corporation form of Lock Up Agreement (incorporated by reference
from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on September 15, 2006).

International Assets Holding Corporation form of Registration Rights Agreement (incorporated by
reference from Form 8-K, as filed with the SEC on September 15, 2006).

2007 Restricted Stock Plan (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy Statement on
Form 14A filed with the SEC on January 1, 2007).

2007 Executive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference from the Company’s Proxy
Statement on Form 14A filed with the SEC on January 1, 2007).

International Assets Holding Corporation Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference from the
Company’s Form 10-KSB filed with the SEC for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003).

List of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.

Consent of Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a — 14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Rule 13a — 14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

* Filed as part of this report.

Schedules and Exhibits Excluded

All schedules and exhibits not included are not applicable, not required or would contain information which
is included in Consolidated Financial Statements, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, or the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION
By: /s/ SEAN M. O’ CONNOR

Sean M. O’Connor,
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: December 8, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/  DIEGO J. VEITIA Director and Chairman of the Board December 8, 2008
Diego J. Veitia

/s/  SEAN M. O’CONNOR Director and Chief Executive Officer December 8, 2008

Sean M. O’Connor

/s/  ScotT J. BRANCH Director and President December 8, 2008
Scott J. Branch

/s/  ROBERT A. MILLER Director December 8, 2008
Robert A. Miller

/s/  JOHN RADZIWILL Director December 8, 2008
John Radziwill
/s/ JUSTIN R. WHEELER Director December 8, 2008

Justin R. Wheeler

/s/  JOHN M. FOWLER Director December 8, 2008
John M. Fowler

/s/  BRIAN T. SEPHTON Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer December 8, 2008
Brian T. Sephton (Chief Accounting Officer)
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Management’s annual report on internal control over financial reporting

The management of International Assets Holding Corporation is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under
the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

There are limitations inherent in any internal control, such as the possibility of human error and the
circumvention or overriding of controls. As a result, even effective internal controls can provide only reasonable
assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and may not prevent or detect misstatements. As
conditions change over time so too may the effectiveness of internal controls.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial
reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the registrant’s annual or
interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those responsible for oversight of a registrant’s
financial reporting.

Management has evaluated our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008, based on
the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (COSO) of the Treadway Commission.

Based on its assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was
effective as of September 30, 2008.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm has issued their audit report on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting, which is included in their report appearing on page F-2.



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
International Assets Holding Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of International Assets Holding Corporation
and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the related consolidated income
statements, consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and consolidated cash flow statements for each of the
years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2008. We have also audited the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of September 30, 2008, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit of the consolidated financial
statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit over internal control over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended September 30, 2008 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO).

Rothstein, Kass & Company, P.C.

Roseland, New Jersey
December 8, 2008

F-2



INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In millions, except par value and share amounts)

Assets
Cash .o
Cash and cash equivalents deposited with brokers, dealers and clearing organization ... ...
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organization ..........................
Receivable from CuStomers, NEt . . ... ..ottt ittt e e e
Financial instruments owned, at fair value . ............ ... . .
Physical commodities inventory, at COSt .. ... ..ottt
Trust certificates, at fair value . . . . ...
Prepaid iNCOME taXes . . . . ottt
Investment in managed funds, at fair value ........... .. ... .. .. . . ..
Deferred iNCOME tAXES . . . . . vttt et ettt e e e e e e e e
Property and equipment, NEt . .. ...ttt e
Intangible assets, Net . . . .. ...ttt
GoOdWIlL . ..
Debt 1SSUANCE COSES, TMEL . . . . vttt et e e e e e e e e e e
Other @SSELS . . ottt et e e e e
TOtal @SSELS . o . vttt
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . . .. ...
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fairvalue .......................
Payable to lenders under loans and overdrafts .............. ... ... ... .. ... .. ..
Payable to brokers, dealers and clearing organization .................. .. .......
Payable to CUSIOMETS . . .. ..ot
Accrued compensation and benefits . ............ .
Income taxes payable ... .. ... ...
Deferred iNCOME tAXES . . . . oottt ettt e e e e
Other long-term liabilities . .. ........ ... .
Convertible subordinated notes payable, net ............... ... .. .. ... .. ... ..
Total Habilities ... .. ... ..o

Commitments and contingencies (see Note 16)

Minority owners’ interest in consolidated entities .............. ... ... .. .. . .. ...

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 1,000,000 shares; no shares issued or

OULSTANAING . . o ot
Common stock, $.01 par value. Authorized 17,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding

8,928,711 shares at September 30, 2008 and 8,253,508 shares at September 30,

2007 e
Additional paid-in capital ........ ... ...
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) .. ........ .. ... . i
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10ss) . ........... ... .. .. ... ...

Total stockholders’ eqUIty . . ... ...ttt e
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............ .. ... .. .. .. ... ...

See accompanying notes
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September 30,
2008 2007

$ 482 $ 36.0

146 177
202 315
492 404

218.0 147.0
574 394
— 112
— 1.1
119 163
— 5.6

25 2.4
0.6 0.8
8.8 73
0.6 12
6.0 33
$438.0 $361.2
$ 43 $ 52
151.5 163.8
119.8  85.1
250 145
263 183
8.0 72
1.0 3.0
20  —
0.4 0.5

3383 297.6
168 249

355.1 3225

8.1 3.1

0.1 0.1
489  36.6
267  (1.1)
0.9 —
748 356



INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Income Statements
(In millions, except share and per share amounts)

Year Ended September 30,

2008 2007 2006
Revenues:
Sales of physical commodities ............................. $ 182552 $ 44293 $§ 4429
Net dealer inventory and investment gains .. .................. 80.6 18.1 31.2
Asset managementfees ......... ... .. i 13.4 7.8 0.8
Other . ... 9.7 5.1 1.6
Total revenues . ... e 18,358.9 4,460.3 476.5
Cost of sales of physical commodities ....................... 18,231.5 4,406.7 440.6
Operating reVeNUES . . . ..o vttt et e e e 127.4 53.6 35.9
INEeTesSt EXPENSE .« . v ot vttt et e e 11.2 9.4 2.1
NELTEVENUES . .. vttt ettt e et e 116.2 44.2 33.8
Non-interest expenses:
Compensation and benefits . ............. ... ... .. .. ... .... 40.0 30.4 16.7
Clearing and related eXpenses . .. .........c...ouuinenennen... 15.5 11.8 7.7
Occupancy and equipment rental ........................... 1.5 1.1 0.6
Professional fees ............ ... i 2.3 1.9 0.8
Depreciation and amortization . ....................... ..., 1.0 0.8 0.4
Business development . .............. .. i 2.8 1.7 1.1
INSUrance . .........c.iitiii i e 0.4 0.3 0.2
Other . ... 5.1 1.9 1.0
Total NnON-INterest EXPenses . . .. vvvv v v v e .. 68.6 49.9 28.5
Income (loss) before income tax and minority interest . . . .. .. 47.6 6.7 5.3
Income tax expense (benefit) ........... .. ... .. . ... 18.0 (2.0) 1.7
Income (loss) before minority interest ................... 29.6 3.7 3.6
Minority interest in income of consolidated entities . ................ 0.4 0.6 0.1
Income (loss) from continuing operations ................ 29.2 4.3) 3.5
Loss from discontinued operations, netof taxes . ................... 1.4 0.2 —
Net income (10SS) ..ot et e e $ 27.8 $ 4.5) $ 3.5
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing Operations . ... ..........euuerneennennenn.n $ 347 $ (0.54) $ 0.45
Discontinued operations .. ...............coiiiiiiain... $ 0.17) $ (0.02) $ —
Net basic earnings (loss) per share ...................... $ 330 $ (0.56) $ 0.45
Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Continuing Operations . . ...........c...veeuneeenneenn.. $ 3.09 $ (054) $ 0.41
Discontinued operations . .................c.oiiiiai.... $ 0.14) $ 0.02) $ —
Net diluted earnings (loss) pershare ..................... $ 295 $ (0.56) $ 0.41
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
BasiC ... 8,434,976 8,086,837 7,636,808
Diluted . ....oi 9,901,766 8,086,837 8,387,761

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
(In millions)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (10SS) ... ..ottt e
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ... .......... ..ottt
Income tax benefit on stock awards exercised .. ........... ... .. o
Deferred inCOME taXES .. ..ottt e e
Amortization of debt issuance costs and debt discount ......................
Convertible debt interest settled in Company stock upon partial conversion . . ...
MINOTILY INEEIESE . . . oo ettt et et e e e e e e e e
Amortization of stock-based compensation eXpense . .......................
Unrealized investment loss (gain) from INTL Consilium managed funds .......
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organization ..............
Receivable from customers ...............c.. i
Financial instruments owned, at fairvalue ...........................
Physical commodities inventory, at COSt . ............ ...,
Prepaid inCome taxes . ... .. ...ovuut ittt
Oher @SSELS . . oottt ettt e e e
Accounts payable and accrued eXpenses . .............iiiii. ..
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value ..............
Payable to brokers, dealers and clearing organization . ..................
Payable to CUStOMETrS . ... ...ttt
Accrued compensation and benefits .. .......... .. L oo
Income taxes payable . .......... ..
Other liabilities . . ... ..

Net cash used in operating activities ..................c.ooven...

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital contribution of consolidated joint venture partner ...................
Capital distribution of consolidated joint venture partner ....................
Cash from consolidation of ICCAF .. ... ... .. ... .. .. . .. ... . ....
Cash acquired with acquisition of Gainvest . .......... ... ... .. .. .. ......
Payments related to acquisition of Gainvest ............... .. .. ... .. .. ....
Payments related to acquisition of INTL Global Currencies ..................
Investment in managed funds . . ....... ... .. .. . L L i
Investment withdrawals from managed funds ............ ... .. ... ... ....
Purchase of property and equipment .............. .. .. ... .. .. .. . ...

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities .................

See accompanying notes
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Year Ended September 30,
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2.0) 33 0.8
(329) 556  18.8
10.5 46 55
80 107  (0.4)
0.7 30 2.1
200 15  (0.7)
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— 20  —
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— 20 —
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— ©0.8) (1.8
(10.0) (135  (1.0)
— — 3.4
(1.1)  (12)  (0.6)
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
(In millions)

Year Ended September 30,
2008 2007 2006

Cash flows from financing activities:

Issuance of convertible subordinated notes payable,net ...................... — — 25.4
Payable to lenders under loans and overdrafts .............................. 347 785 (6.3)
Exercise of Stock Options ... ...ttt 1.4 1.1 2.0
Income tax benefit on stock awards exercised ............. .. .. ... ... ... 1.3 0.7 —
Net cash provided by financing activities . ......................... 374 803 21.1
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents ........................... 0.8 — —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ........... ... ... ... ..., 9.1 157 178
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .............. ... .. ... ... ... 5377 380 202
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ... ............uuuuurrnnnnnnnnnn. $62.8 $53.7 $38.0
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid fOr INtEIESt ... oo oottt ettt e et e e et $102 $83 §$20
Income taxes PAId .. ..ot $ 94 $17 §$32
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:
Conversion of subordinated notes to common stock, net . .. ..........coeuno... $ 81 $19 $—
Release of trust Certificates . ..........oouuiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaaaee... $112 $29 §$14
Estimated beginning fair value of assets and (liabilities) received on consolidation:
ASSEtS ACqUITEd . . .o oo oottt $509 $88 §$ 1.2
Liabilities assumed . ... ...... .. “43.7) (6.0) (0.1)
MIinority OWNers interest . . ... ..vv ettt e e (72) — 0.3)
Total net assets acquired . ... ...........ouuiieiiiiiae . $ — $28 $038
Identified intangible assets on acquisitions . .................c.oviiriin..n.. $— $09 $—
Additional goodwill on acquiSitions ... ........... ..ot $— $10 $03
Issuance of common stock related to acquisitions . .......................... $— $1.7 $—

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(In millions)

Retained Accumulated
Additional Earnings Other
Common Paid-in (Accumulated Comprehensive
Stock Capital Deficit) Loss Total
Balance as of October 1,2005 .................. $0.1 $28.1 $(0.1) $— $28.1
Components of comprehensive income:
Netincome ..............ccoueuiinenan... 3.5 3.5
Total comprehensive income ........... $ 35
Exercise of stock options ...................... — 2.0 2.0
Stock-based compensation ..................... 0.3 0.3
Balance as of September 30,2006 ............... $0.1 $30.4 $ 34 $— 33.9
Components of comprehensive loss:
Netloss . ... 4.5) 4.5)
Total comprehensive loss .............. $(ﬁ)
Exercise of stock options . ..................... — 1.1 1.1
Stock-based compensation ..................... 1.5 1.5
Debtconversion .................... ... — 1.9 1.9
Issuance of shares for acquisition .. .............. — 1.7 1.7
Balance as of September 30,2007 ............... $0.1 $36.6 $(1.1) $— $35.6
Components of comprehensive income:
Netincome ..............c.coiuiininen... 27.8 27.8
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on derivative
INStruments . .............couuienunnn... 0.8) 0.8)
Change in foreign currency translation ....... 0.1 0.1
Total comprehensive income ........... $26.9
Exercise of stock options . ..................... — 2.6 2.6
Stock-based compensation . .................... 1.6 1.6
Debt conversion ............ .. .. ... — 8.1 8.1
Balance as of September 30,2008 ............... $0.1 $48.9 $26.7 $(0.9) $74.8

See accompanying notes
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 — Accounting Policies
Accounting Principles

The consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of International Assets Holding Corporation and
its subsidiaries. Intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated. Equity investments in which we
exercise control or variable interest entities in which we are the primary beneficiary have been consolidated.
Unless otherwise stated herein, all references to 2008, 2007 and 2006 refer to the Company’s fiscal years ended
September 30.

Estimates and Assumptions

Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. The most significant of these estimates and
assumptions relate to fair value measurements for financial instruments and investments and the provision for
potential losses from bad debts. Provisions for estimated bad debts are recorded on a specific identification basis.
Although these and other estimates and assumptions are based on the best available information, actual results
may differ materially from management’s estimates and assumptions.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities recorded in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate on the balance sheet
date. Revenue and expenses are translated at average rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Translation
adjustments resulting from this process are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”).

Revenue Recognition

Sales of physical commodities revenue are recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collectibility is probable. The Company reports its
physical commodities revenues on a gross basis, with the corresponding cost of sales shown separately, in
accordance with the guidelines provided in Emerging Issues Task Force (‘EITF’) Issue No. 99-19.

Net dealer inventory and investment gains are recognized on a trade-date basis and include changes in
unrealized gains or losses on investments at market value.

Asset management fees are recognized as they are earned based on estimates of fees due at each period-end
date. These include estimated performance fees based on the amount that would be due under the formula for
exceeding performance targets as of the period-end date. Estimated performance fees may be at risk due to future
performance contingencies until such time as they are fixed.

Revenue generally is recognized net of any taxes collected from customers and subsequently remitted to
governmental authorities.



INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Cost of Revenue

Cost of sales of physical commodities include finished commodity or raw material and processing costs
along with operating costs relating to the receipt, storage and delivery of the physical commodities.

Stock-Based Compensation

On October 1, 2006 the Company adopted SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, using the modified
prospective method. Under the fair value recognition provisions of this statement, share-based compensation cost
is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense over the
applicable vesting period of the stock award using the straight-line method.

For option awards granted subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), compensation cost is recognized
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period for the entire award. This is consistent with the method used prior
to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) in the calculation of pro-forma compensation expense. The expense of
unvested option awards granted prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will continue to be recognized on a
straight-line basis, over the balance of the vesting period.

If the Company had determined compensation expense for the Company’s options based on the grant-date
fair values in accordance with SFAS No. 123 in fiscal year 2006 the Company’s net income and earnings per
share amounts would have been as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
(In millions, except per share amounts) 2006
Net income, asreported .. ........ ... $ 35
Pro forma option compensation eXpense . .. ............o.iuitiininnaen. 0.5)
Pro formanetincome . .......... ... oottt $ 3.0
Basic earnings per share, asreported .. ......... . ... $0.45
Basic earnings per share, proforma ........... ... .. $0.38
Diluted earnings per share, as reported .. ............ ... i $0.41
Diluted earnings per share, proforma ............. ... ciuiiiieiineinn... $0.35

Income Taxes

Income tax expense includes U.S. and foreign income taxes. Certain items of income and expense are not
reported in tax returns and financial statements in the same year. The tax effect of such temporary differences is
reported as deferred income taxes.

Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash deposits with brokers, dealers and the Company's
clearing organization. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months
or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. All cash and cash equivalents deposited with brokers,
dealers and clearing organization support the Company's trading activities, and are subject to contractual
restrictions. Cash deposits with clearing organization consist of cash, foreign currency and money market funds
stated at cost. The fair value of these investments approximates their carrying value. Cash in the consolidated
VIE, INTL Consilium Convertible Arbitrage Fund, is not available for the Company’s operations. The amount of
this cash is disclosed in Note 3.

F-9



INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Financial instruments owned, at fair value and financial instruments sold, not yet purchased, at fair value
consist of financial instruments carried at fair value or amounts that approximate fair value, with related
unrealized changes in gains or losses recognized in the Company’s results of operations. The fair value of a
financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

Investment in managed funds, at fair value represents investments in funds managed by the Company’s fund
managers. The investments are valued at period-end at the net asset value provided by the fund’s administrator.

We utilize derivative instruments to manage exposures to foreign currency, commodity price and interest
rate risks for the Company and its customers. The Company’s objectives for holding derivatives include
reducing, eliminating, and efficiently managing the economic impact of these exposures as effectively as
possible. Derivative instruments are recognized as either assets or liabilities and are measured at fair value. The
accounting for changes in the fair value of a derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the
resulting designation. For a derivative instrument designated as a cash-flow hedge, the effective portion of the
derivative’s gain or loss is initially reported as a component of OCI and is subsequently recognized in earnings
when the hedged exposure affects earnings. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss is recognized in earnings.
Gains and losses from changes in fair values of derivatives that are not designated as hedges for accounting
purposes are recognized in earnings.

The Company’s derivative contracts consist of exchange-traded and over-the-counter (‘OTC’) derivatives.
Fair values of exchange-traded derivatives are generally determined from quoted market prices. OTC derivatives
are valued using valuation models. The valuation models used to derive the fair values of OTC derivatives
require inputs including contractual terms, market prices, yield curves and measurements of volatility. The
Company uses similar models to value similar instruments. Where possible, the Company verifies the values
produced by pricing models by comparing them to market transactions. Inputs may involve judgment where
market prices are not readily available. Derivatives used as economic hedges in our commodities business
generally do not qualify for hedge accounting under Statement of Financial Standards (‘SFAS’) No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

The Company may lease commodities to or from customers or counterparties, or advance commodities to
customers on an unpriced basis, receiving payment as and when they become priced. These are valued at fair
value and classified under financial instruments as hybrid contracts with embedded derivative features that
cannot be reliably measured and separated from the host contract. As permitted by SFAS 133, the entire
instrument is recorded at fair value, with the corresponding change in fair value recognized in revenue within net
dealer and investment gains.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, using the specific identification weighted average price
method. Cost includes finished commodity or raw material and processing costs related to the purchase and
processing of inventories.

Reclassifications

Effective for the quarter ended December 31, 2007 the Company reclassified certain balances on its
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated cash flow statement as of September 30, 2007 to reflect the netting
of $60.8 million in balances payable to customers representing cash collateral offset against financial instruments
executed with the same counterparty under master netting agreements, as discussed within recently adopted
accounting standards below.
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Effective for the quarter ended June 30, 2008, the Company reclassified certain prior period balances from
professional fees to clearing and related expenses. The reclassified fees were fund service accounting charges
which are based on the value of the respective funds. The net result of this change for the year ended
September 30, 2007 was an increase in clearing and related expenses of $0.4 million and a corresponding
decrease of $0.4 million in professional fees. There was no change to the 2006 numbers as presented.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is stated at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the shorter of
the estimated life of the asset or the lease term, which range from three to seven years. Computer software
developed or obtained for internal use is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life
of the software, generally three years or less.

Goodwill

Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis for the fiscal year-end, and between annual tests if
indicators of potential impairment exist, using a fair-value-based approach. No impairment of goodwill has been
identified during any of the periods presented.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated period of benefit, ranging
from one to five years. We evaluate the recoverability of intangible assets periodically and take into account
events or circumstances that warrant revised estimates of useful lives or that indicate that impairment exists.
Residual value is presumed to be zero, subject to certain exceptions. All of our intangible assets are subject to
amortization. No material impairments of intangible assets have been identified during any of the periods
presented.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In December, 2007, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 110 (SAB 110). SAB 110 amends the SEC’s views discussed in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (SAB
107) regarding the use of the simplified method in developing estimates of the expected lives of share options in
accordance with SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment (SFAS No. 123(R)). During 2007 the
Company calculated the expected term of options granted using the simplified method in accordance with SAB
107. The simplified method was intended to be a temporary estimation technique and was to be phased out as
more detailed information about exercise behavior became readily available. SAB 110 was effective for us
beginning in the first quarter of 2008, and from the second quarter of 2008, we estimate the expected term of
options granted based on our historical experience with our employees’ exercise of stock options and other
factors. Our implementation of SAB 110 in the second quarter of 2008 did not have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In April 2007, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) No. FIN 39-1, Amendment of FASB
Interpretation No. 39. FSP FIN 39-1 modifies FIN 39, Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts, and
permits companies to offset cash collateral receivables or payables with net derivative positions under certain
circumstances. FSP FIN 39-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, with early adoption
permitted. Effective for the quarter ended December 31, 2007, the Company elected to adopt FIN FSP 39-1,
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INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

which changed its accounting policy related to netting of customer cash collateral balances against financial
instruments where a right of setoff exists with the same counterparty under master netting agreements. The
Company believes that it is preferable to net these balances against each other in order to better present the
Company’s exposure related to financial instruments and customer balances. The consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated cash flow statement as of September 30, 2007 have been adjusted to reflect the netting of $60.8
million in balances payable to customers representing cash collateral offset against financial instruments
executed with the same counterparty under master netting agreements.

In December 2006, the FASB issued EITF 00-19-2, Accounting for Registration Payment Arrangements.
EITF 00-19-2 specifies that the contingent obligation to make future payments or otherwise transfer
consideration under a registration payment arrangement, whether issued as a separate agreement or included as a
provision of a financial instrument or other agreement, should be separately recognized and measured in
accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies. EITF 00-19-2 was effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted EITF 00-19-2 with effect from October 1, 2007. The adoption
has not had a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-3, Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When
the Market for that Asset is not Active. FSP FAS 157-3 is consistent with the joint press release the FASB issued
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 30, 2008, which provides general clarification
guidance on determining fair value under FASB 157 when markets are inactive. FSP FAS 157-3 specifically
addresses the use of judgment in determining whether a transaction in a dislocated market represents fair value,
the inclusion of market participant risk adjustments when an entity significantly adjusts observable market data
based on unobservable inputs, and the degree of reliance to be placed on broker quotes or pricing services. FSP
FAS 157-3 is effective October 10, 2008 and should be applied prospectively. We do not believe that FSP
FAS 157-3 will have a significant effect on our current fair value measurements.

In September 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4, Disclosures about Credit Derivatives
and Certain Guarantees: An Amendment of FASB Statement No. 133 and FASB Interpretation No. 45; and
Clarification of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 161. FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 require enhanced
disclosures by sellers of credit derivatives, including credit derivatives embedded in a hybrid instrument, and
require additional disclosure about the current status of the payment/performance risk of a guarantee. FSP
FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 are effective for our 2009 fiscal first quarter financial statements as of December 31,
2008. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of FSP FAS 133-1 and FIN 45-4 on
disclosures in our financial statements.

In June 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”)
EITF 03-6-1, Determining Whether Instruments Granted in Share-Based Payment Transactions Are
Participating Securities. This FSP states that unvested share-based payment awards that contain nonforfeitable
rights to dividends or dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating securities and shall be
included in the computation of earnings per share pursuant to the two-class method. The FSP is effective for
financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those
years. We will adopt FSP EITF 03-6-1 for our 2010 fiscal year. Upon adoption, a company is required to
retrospectively adjust its earnings per share data (including any amounts related to interim periods, summaries of
earnings and selected financial data) to conform with the provisions in this FSP. However, early application of
the provisions in this FSP is prohibited. We are currently evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of FSP
03-6-1 on our results of operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

In April 2008, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FSP FAS 142-3, Determination
of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets. This FSP amends the factors that should be considered in developing
renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The intent of this FSP is to improve the consistency between the
useful life of a recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142 and the period of expected cash flows used to
measure the fair value of the asset under SFAS No. 141 (Revised 2007), Business Combinations, and other U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This FSP is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is
prohibited. We will adopt FSP FAS 142-3 for our 2010 fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the potential
impact that the adoption of FSP 142-3 will have on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and
cash flows.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities—an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133. SFAS No. 161 expands quarterly disclosure requirements
in SFAS No. 133 about an entity’s derivative instruments and hedging activities. SFAS No. 161 is effective for
fiscal periods beginning after November 15, 2008. We will adopt SFAS No. 161 effective January 1, 2009. We
are currently evaluating the potential impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 161 on disclosures in our financial
statements.

In February 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 157-2 (FSP 157-2), Effective Date of
FASB Statement No. 157. FSP 157-2 deferred the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except for items that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, until fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. As a result of FSP 157-2, we will
adopt SFAS No. 157 for our nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities beginning with the first quarter of our
fiscal year 2010. We are currently evaluating the potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have
on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51. SFAS No. 160 changes the accounting and reporting for minority
interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and classified as a component of equity. This
new consolidation method significantly changes the accounting for transactions with minority interest holders.
SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and earlier adoption is prohibited.
SFAS No. 160 will be effective for us for our 2010 fiscal year and will be applied prospectively, except for the
presentation and disclosure requirements, which will be applied retrospectively. We are currently evaluating the
potential impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial position, results of
operations and cash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R) (revised 2007), Business Combinations. SFAS
No. 141(R) significantly changes the accounting for business combinations in a number of areas including the
treatment of contingent consideration, preacquisition contingencies, transaction costs, in-process research and
development and restructuring costs. In addition, under SFAS No. 141(R), changes in an acquired entity’s
deferred tax assets and uncertain tax positions after the measurement period will impact income tax expense.
SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, and earlier adoption is
prohibited. We will adopt SFAS No. 141(R) beginning October 1, 2009 and will change our accounting treatment
for business combinations on a prospective basis for business combinations completed on or after that date.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

Note 2 — Earnings (Loss) per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average number of shares of common
stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed on the basis of the weighted average
number of shares of common stock plus the effect of dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the
period using the treasury stock method for options and restricted stock, and the if-converted method for
convertible debt. Dilutive potential common shares include outstanding stock options, restricted stock, and
convertible debt. The components of basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

Year Ended September 30,
(In millions, except share amounts) 2008 2007 2006
Numerator:
Income from continuing operations . .......................... $ 29.2 % 4.3) $ 3.5
Add: Interest on convertible debt, netoftax ..................... 1.4 — —
Diluted income (loss) from continuing operations .............. 30.6 4.3) 3.5
Less: loss from discontinued operations . ....................... (1.4) 0.2) —
Diluted net income (I0SS) .. v v ettt e $ 292 $ 45 $ 3.5
Denominator:
Weighted average number of:
Common shares outstanding .. ........... .. ... ... 8,434,976 8,086,837 7,636,808
Dilutive potential common shares outstanding:
Share-based awards . .......... .. ... 492,663 — 750,953
Convertible debt . ... 974,067 — —
Diluted weighted-average shares ....................... 9,901,706 8,086,837 8,387,761

For fiscal years 2008 and 2006, options to purchase 121,341 shares and 10,000 shares of common stock,
respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because the exercise prices of the
stock options were greater than or equal to the average price of the common shares, and therefore their inclusion
would have been anti-dilutive. No options to purchase shares of common stock were considered in the calculation
of diluted loss per share for the year ended September 30, 2007 because there was a net loss for the period and
therefore their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. For fiscal years 2007 and 2006, 981,547 and 1,058,824
shares, respectively, were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for convertible
subordinated notes payable as they would have been anti-dilutive under the if-converted method.

Note 3 — Consolidation of the ICCAF Fund

The Company has an investment in the INTL Consilium Convertible Arbitrage Fund (‘the ICCAF fund’).
On June 1 and September 1, 2008, the Company made additional investments in the ICCAF fund, increasing its
interest to 73%. Under the provisions of FIN 46 (R) the Company was required to consolidate the ICCAF fund as
a variable interest entity effective June 1, 2008. Accordingly, the minority interest shown in the balance sheet and
income statement for 2008 also includes the minority interests of the ICCAF fund with effect from June 1, 2008.
The creditors of the ICCAF fund have no recourse to the general assets of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

The following table presents a condensed balance sheet of ICCAF at June 1, 2008, the date of consolidation
for the ICCAF fund, and at September 30, 2008:

ICCAF as of ICCAF as of
June 1, 2008 September 30,

(In millions) (unaudited) 2008

Cash and cash equivalents ............ .. .. .. ... $16.4 $—
Financial instruments owned ............. ... .. ... .. .. ... 44.9 77.1
Oher @SSeLs . . ..ottt e e e e 0.4 0.3
Total assets ........... .. i 61.7 77.4
Accounts payable . ........ .. 1.0 0.5
Financial instruments sold, not yet purchased ...................... 42.6 49.0
Other liabilities .. ....... ... ... i — 7.8
Total liabilities ... .......... o i 43.6 57.3
EqQUity ..o 18.1 20.1
Total liabilities and equity ............ ... ... .. ... ... $61.7 $77.4

Note 4 — Other Revenues, net

Other revenue is comprised of the following:

(In millions)

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
Fees and COMMISSIONS . .. ..ottt et $62 $37 $06
Dividend expense, Net . ...........o.iuinintit 0.2) 0.2) (0.1)
INterest iINCOME . . . ..ottt e e e et e 3.1 0.9 0.4
Other . .o 0.6 0.7 0.7

Total other revenues, net . ................c.ouuiireunieon... $97 $51 $1.6

Note 5 — Receivable from Customers, net

Receivable from customers, net includes a provision for bad debts, which reflects our best estimate of
probable losses inherent in the receivable from customers, net. We determine the balance based on a specific
identification basis. The Company established a bad debt provision of $1.2 million during the fiscal quarter
ended March 31, 2008, arising from the failure of a customer to meet its obligations under a contract with the
Company. The total amount payable by the customer was $2.4 million. In the fiscal quarter ended September 30,
2008, based upon specific circumstances for this particular customer, the Company increased its bad debt
provision by a further $1.2 million, bringing the provision for bad debts to $2.4 million at September 30, 2008 in
order to fully provide for the balance due from this customer. Bad debt expense of $2.4 million for fiscal 2008 is
included in ‘other’ under the non-interest expenses section of the income statement.
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Note 6 — Financial Instruments Owned and Financial Instruments Sold, Not yet Purchased, at Market
Value

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, not yet purchased consisted of trading and
investment financial instruments at market values, as follows:

September 30, 2008 2007

Sold, not yet Sold, not yet
(In millions) Owned purchased Owned purchased
Common stock and ADR’S . .......... ..., $183 $ 58 $203 $103
Exchangeable foreign ordinary equities and ADR’s .............. 35.0 35.1 30.0 30.1
Corporate and municipalbonds . .. ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... 80.2 44.6 9.5 —
Foreign government obligations ................ .. ... .. ...... 0.8 — 0.2 —
U.S. Treasury Bonds under total return swap transactions ......... — — — 21.9
Derivatives . . . ..o 31.5 13.3 66.8 72.6
CommoOdities .. .....outi 49.9 52.7 18.8 28.9
U.S. Government obligations . .................c.couvuvnenn. 0.5 — 0.1 —
Mutual funds, proprietary securitized trusts and other ............ 1.8 — 1.3 —

$218.0  $151.5  $147.0  $163.8

The significant increase in corporate and municipal bond balances between September 30, 2007 and
September 30, 2008 relates to the consolidation of the assets and liabilities of the INTL Consilium Convertible
Arbitrage Fund with effect from the quarter ended June 30, 2008 (see Note 3).

Note 7 — Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company is party to certain financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of its
business. The Company has sold financial instruments that it does not currently own and will therefore be
obliged to purchase such financial instruments at a future date. The Company has recorded these obligations in
the consolidated financial statements at September 30, 2008 at the fair values of the related financial instruments.
The Company will incur losses if the market value of the financial instruments increases subsequent to
September 30, 2008. The total of $159.0 million at September 30, 2008 includes $20.0 million for derivative
contracts, which represent a liability to the Company based on their fair values as of September 30, 2008.

Listed below are the fair values of trading-related derivatives. Assets represent net unrealized gains and
liabilities represent net unrealized losses.

September 30, 2008 2007

(In millions) Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Equity index derivatives . ..............iuuiiiiiiiiiii $18 $02 $01 $—
Interest rate derivatives . ... ....... ... ...t — 0.5 — —
Commodity price derivatives .. ... .......ouuiiniinninninnennenn.n. 29.7 12.6 66.7 72.6

$31.5 $133  $66.8 $72.6
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The derivatives as of September 30, 2008 mature as follows:

Assets Liabilities
Maturing Maturing Maturing Maturing Maturing Maturing
in Fiscal in Fiscal 2011 & in Fiscal in Fiscal 2011 &
(In millions) Total 2009 2010 Later Total 2009 2010 Later
Equity index derivatives . ... ... $18 $09 $0.1 $08 $02 $— $— $0.2
Interest rate derivatives ....... — — — — 0.5 — — 0.5
Commodity price derivatives ... 29.7 29.7 — — 12.6 12.6 — —
$31.5  $30.6 $0.1 $0.8 $13.3  $12.6 $— $0.7
Commodity price derivatives:
Basemetals ............. $14.5  $145 $— $— $34 $34 $— $—
Precious metals .. ........ $152  $15.2 $— $— $92 $92 $— $—

The Company’s derivative contracts are principally held in its commodities business segment. The
Company assists its commodities customers in protecting the value of their future production by entering into
option or forward agreements with them on an OTC basis. The Company also provides its commodities
customers with sophisticated option products, including combinations of buying and selling puts and calls. The
Company mitigates its risk by effecting offsetting trades with market counterparties. The risk mitigation of these
offsetting trades is not within the documented hedging designation requirements of SFAS No. 133.

These derivative contracts are traded along with cash transactions because of the integrated nature of the
markets for such products. The Company manages the risks associated with derivatives on an aggregate basis
along with the risks associated with its proprietary trading and market-making activities in cash instruments as
part of its firm-wide risk management policies. In particular, the risks related to derivative positions may be
partially offset by inventory, unrealized gains in inventory or cash collateral paid or received.

In the normal course of business, the Company purchases and sells financial instruments and foreign
currencies as a principal. If either the customer or counterparty fails to perform, the Company may be required to
discharge the obligations of the nonperforming party. In such circumstances, the Company may sustain a loss if
the market value of the financial instrument or foreign currency is different from the contract value of the
transaction.

The majority of the Company’s transactions and, consequently, the concentration of its credit exposure is
with customers, broker-dealers and other financial institutions. These activities primarily involve collateralized
and uncollateralized arrangements and may result in credit exposure in the event that a customer or counterparty
fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk can be directly impacted by
volatile financial markets, which may impair the ability of customers or counterparties to satisfy their contractual
obligations. The Company seeks to control its credit risk through a variety of reporting and control procedures,
including establishing credit limits based upon a review of the customers’ and counterparties’ financial condition
and credit ratings. The Company monitors collateral levels on a daily basis for compliance with regulatory and
internal guidelines and requests changes in collateral levels as appropriate.
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Note 8 — Physical Commodities Inventory

September 30,

(In millions) 2008 2007
Commodities in process ........................ $55 31038
Finished commodities .......................... 51.9 28.6

$57.4  $39.4

Physical commodities inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market value, determined using the specific
identification weighted average price method. Commodities in process include commodities in the process of
being recycled. At September 30, 2008, $54.9 million of physical commodities inventory served as collateral
under one of the Company’s credit facilities, as detailed further in Note 14.

Note 9 — Trust Certificates and Total Return Swap

During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, the Company entered into a series of financial transactions
(the ‘Transactions’) with an unaffiliated financial institution for a transaction fee. These Transactions involved
three distinct and simultaneous steps:

e the acquisition by the Company of beneficial interests (“Trust Interests’) in certain trusts (the “Trusts’)
in exchange for the assumption of a liability to deliver securities, at a transaction value of $29.7 million.
This step did not require any prior purchase or delivery of securities by the Company. The Trusts were
previously established by the financial institution to hold a variety of real estate assets;

* the entry into a repurchase agreement under the terms of which the Company notionally repurchased
these undelivered securities for cash, at a price of $29.7 million;

e the entry into a total return swap (‘TRS’) agreement.

Under the TRS agreement the Company received, on a notional basis, the cash amount of $29.7 million as
collateral for the potential liability of the financial institution to the Company.

The net result is that the Company initially reported the effects of a) above as an increase in assets
represented by the Trust Interests, and the assumption of a liability to deliver securities, at the initial transaction
value of $29.7 million. Over time, as the values of the Trust Interests and securities deliverable changed as a
result of changes in value or the sale of the Trust Interests, the Company recorded equal and offsetting changes in
the values of the TRS receivables or payables.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2007, the remaining Trust Interests were sold by the Company in
exchange for the release of its obligation to deliver to the buyer United States Government strip bonds maturing
February 15, 2008, at fair value of $22.1 million. As anticipated, the only impact of the transactions on the
Company’s net income and cash flow was the receipt of fee revenue.
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Note 10 — Property and Equipment, net

September 30,
(In millions) 2008 2007
Property and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and equipment . .............. ...ttt $32 $26
Building .. ... o 0.6 0.6
Leasehold improvements . ............... ittt 1.1 0.7
Total property and equipment ............... .. .. ... i 4.9 3.9
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization . .. ...................... 2.4) (1.5)
Property and eqUipment, NEt . . .. ..o vttt et ettt $25 $24

Property and equipment, net are stated at cost and are net of accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. During fiscal years 2008,
2007, and 2006, depreciation expense was $0.8 million, $0.5 million, and $0.3 million, respectively.

Note 11 — Goodwill

The Company acquired the Gainvest group of companies (“INTL Gainvest”), specialists in local markets
securitization and asset management in Argentina, Brazil and Uruguay, in May 2007. Pursuant to this acquisition,
the Company made a payment of $1.4 million to the sellers on June 1, 2008 equal to 25% of the aggregate
revenues of INTL Gainvest earned for the year ended April 30, 2008, which has been recorded as additional
goodwill. The Company is obligated to make a further payment on June 1, 2009 equal to 25% of the aggregate
revenues that INTL Gainvest will earn during the year ending April 30, 2009. The revenues on which the 25% is
calculated are subject to a minimum threshold of $5.5 million and a maximum ceiling of $11 million for the year
ending April 30, 2009. As of September 30, 2008, the aggregate revenues of INTL Gainvest since May 1, 2008
had not exceeded the minimum threshold of $5.5 million for the year ending April 30, 2009. An amount equal to
25% of INTL Gainvest’s revenues for the year ending April 30, 2009 will be recorded as additional goodwill if
and when the minimum revenue threshold is achieved.

Goodwill allocated to the Company’s operating segments is as follows:

September 30,

(In millions) 2008 2007
International debt capital markets ............ ... .. .. .. ... ... $2.5 $1.0
Foreign exchange trading . ........... ... ... ... .. 6.3 6.3

Goodwill ... $8.8 $7.3
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Note 12 — Intangible Assets

September 30,
(In millions) 2008 2007
Intangible assets
Noncompete agreement . . ... ......ouvrunenentenen e $04 $04
Trade name ... ... ...t 0.6 0.6
CUSIOMET DASE . .« . vttt e e e e 0.2 0.2
Other . .o — 0.1
Total intangible assets . ... .. .. ...ttt 1.2 1.3
Less: Accumulated amortization . ............................. (0.6) 0.5)
Intangible assets, MEt . . .. ..ottt e $06 $0.8

Amortization expense amounted to $0.2 million, $0.3 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended
September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Estimated future amortization expense based on existing
intangible assets is $0.2 million, $0.2 million, $0.1 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended September 30,
2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012, respectively. For fiscal 2008 and 2007, all of the unamortized intangible assets were
allocated to its international debt and capital markets segment.

Note 13 — Related Party Transactions

As of September 30, 2008, the Company had investments valued at $14.6 million in two hedge funds
managed by INTL Consilium, LLC (‘INTL Consilium’), including $13.9 million in the ICCAF fund. The ICCAF
fund has been consolidated and included within the results of the Company effective June 1, 2008 (see Note 3).
The Company owns a 50.1% interest in INTL Consilium. The Company also has an investment valued at $11.2
million in the INTL Trade Finance Fund Limited, a fund managed by the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
INTL Capital Limited. This fund invests primarily in global trade finance-related assets. The Company’s
investments in unconsolidated funds are included in ‘Investment in managed funds, at fair value’ on the balance
sheet.

One of the Company’s principal shareholders made an investment, valued at approximately $60 million as
of September 30, 2007, in a hedge fund managed by INTL Consilium. An executive of this shareholder is a
director of the Company. This shareholder redeemed its remaining investment during fiscal 2008.

Note 14 — Payable to Lenders under Loans and Overdrafts

As of September 30, 2008 the Company had four credit facilities under which the Company may borrow up
to $200 million, subject to certain conditions. Interest expense related to the Company’s credit facilities was
approximately $5.5 million, $5.1 million and $1.4 million for the years ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

The Company’s four credit facilities at September 30, 2008 consisted of the following:

* A one-year, renewable, revolving syndicated committed loan facility established on June 27, 2008
under which the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, INTL Commodities, Inc. (‘INTL
Commodities’) is entitled to borrow up to $125 million, subject to certain conditions. There are six
commercial banks that are the underlying lenders within the syndicate group. The loan proceeds are
used to finance the activities of INTL Commodities and are secured by its assets. The interest rate for
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the facility depends on the ratio of borrowings to equity and ranges between 2.00% and 2.25% over the
federal funds rate (2.03% at September 30, 2008) or over the LIBOR rate for the applicable term, at the
Company’s election.

e A demand facility established on March 5, 2008, under which the Company’s Dubai joint venture,
INTL Commodities DMCC, may borrow up to $15 million, subject to certain conditions. The facility is
secured by inventory and receivables.

e Two additional lines of credit with a commercial bank under which the Company may borrow up to
$60 million, subject to certain conditions. One of these lines of credit totaling $25 million is secured by
certain of the Company’s assets and carries a rate of 2.25% over the one-month London Interbank
Offered Rates (‘LIBOR’) (approximately 3.93% at September 30, 2008). The other line of credit
totaling $35 million is secured by a pledge of shares held in certain of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries and carries an interest rate of 2.40% over one-month LIBOR.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had the following credit facilities and outstanding borrowings:

Maximum Amount

Security Maturity Date Amount Outstanding
Certain foreign exchange assets . . . .. December 31, 2009 $ 25.0 $ 9.0
Certain pledged shares ............ December 31, 2009 35.0 31.0
Certain commodities assets ........ On demand 15.0 9.8
Certain commodities assets ........ June 27, 2009 125.0 70.0

$200.0 $119.8

The Company has entered into two interest rate swap transactions totaling $100 million, in order to hedge
potential changes in cash flows resulting from our variable rate LIBOR based borrowings. Effective from the
fourth quarter, these interest rate swaps have been classified under SFAS NO. 133 as cash flow hedges. The
effective portion of the swap’s gain or loss was $0.8 million for fiscal 2008 and has been reported as a
component of OCI. This balance will subsequently be recognized in earnings when the hedged exposure affects
earnings. The ineffective portion of the swap gain or loss was less than $0.1 million for fiscal 2008.

Note 15 — Convertible Subordinated Notes and Debt Issuance Costs

The Company had $16.8 million and $25.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the Company’s senior
subordinated convertible notes due 2011 (‘Notes’) outstanding as of September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The Notes are general unsecured obligations of the Company and bear interest at the rate of 7.625% per annum,
payable quarterly in arrears. Debt issuance costs are net of accumulated amortization of $0.6 million and $0.3
million at September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Amortization charged to interest expense in the condensed
consolidated statements of operations was $0.3 million for fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.

During September 2008, Notes with a principal balance of $8.2 million and accrued interest of $0.1 million
were converted into 325,755 common shares at the election of the Note holders. As of September 30, 2008, the
Notes are convertible by the holders into 661,294 shares of common stock of the Company, at a conversion price
of $25.47 per share. If the dollar-volume weighted average price of the common stock exceeds $38.25, subject to
certain adjustments, for any twenty out of thirty consecutive trading days, the Company has the right to require
the holders of the Notes to convert all or any portion of the Notes into shares of Common Stock at the then-
applicable conversion price.
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In the event that the Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio for the 12 months preceding the end of any fiscal
quarter is less than 2.0, the interest rate on the Notes will be increased by 2.0% to 9.625% per annum, effective as
of the first day of the following fiscal quarter. Through the quarter ended September 30, 2008, no such increase
has been necessary. Holders may redeem their Notes at par if the interest coverage ratio set forth in the Notes is
less than 2.75 for the twelve-month period ending December 31, 2009.

The Company entered into a separate Registration Rights Agreement with the holders of the Notes, under
which the Company was required to file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (‘the SEC’) a
Registration Statement on Form S-3 within a specified period of time. The Registration Statement was declared
effective by the SEC on October 24, 2006. The Company is required, under the Registration Rights Agreement,
to maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement, failing which it could become liable to pay holders of
the Notes liquidated damages of 1% of the value of the Notes upon a failure to maintain effectiveness of the
Registration Statement, plus a further 1% for every 30 days that it remains ineffective thereafter, up to an
aggregate maximum of 10% of the value of the Notes. At September 30, 2008 the Company was in compliance
with its requirements under the Registration Rights Agreement.

Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is obligated under various noncancelable operating leases for the rental of office facilities,
service obligations and certain office equipment, and accounts for these lease obligations on a straight line basis.
The expense associated with operating leases amounted to $2.4 million, $2.1 million and $1.1 million for fiscal
years 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The expenses associated with the operating leases and service
obligations are reported in the income statement within occupancy and equipment rental, clearing and related and
other expenses.

Future aggregate minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2008
are as follows:

Year ending September 30, (In millions)

2000 . $1.9
2000 . 0.9
200 o 0.6
200 0.5
2003 0.2
Thereafter ....... ... ... .. . .. . . . . . . —
$4.1

The Company earns performance fees in its investment management segment which are recorded based on
estimates of fees due at each period-end date. These include estimated performance fees based on the amount that
would be due under the formula for exceeding performance targets as of the period-end date. This revenue may
be at risk due to future performance contingencies. At September 30, 2008 there were no accrued performance
fees which would be considered to be at risk.

As discussed in Note 11 — Goodwill, the Company has a contingent liability relating to the acquisition of
INTL Gainvest which may result in the payment of additional consideration in June 2009.

As discussed in Note 15 — Convertible Subordinated Notes and Debt Issuance Costs, the Notes may be
converted into shares of common stock of the Company at any time by the holders. The Notes also contain a
provision to increase the interest rate by 2%, subject to certain conditions measured on a quarterly basis.
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Note 17 — Capital and Other Regulatory Requirements

Our wholly-owned subsidiary INTL Trading, Inc. (‘INTL Trading’) is a registered broker dealer and
member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and is subject to the SEC Uniform Net
Capital Rule 15¢3-1. This rule requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, and requires that the ratio of
aggregate indebtedness to net capital not exceed 15 to 1. Equity capital may not be withdrawn if the resulting net
capital ratio would exceed 10 to 1. At September 30, 2008, INTL Trading’s net capital was $1.5 million, which
was $0.5 million in excess of its minimum requirement.

Another subsidiary, INTL Capital Limited (‘INTL Capital’), is regulated by the Dubai Financial Services
Authority, in the United Arab Emirates, and was subject to a minimum capital requirement of approximately $0.5
million as of September 30, 2008.

Note 18 — Employee Stock-Based Compensation and Savings Plans

Stock-based compensation expense is included within Compensation and benefits in the income statements
and totaled $0.8 million and $0.7 million for 2008 and 2007, respectively. The pro forma effect of expensing
stock options for 2006 was $0.5 million.

Stock Option Plans

The Company sponsors a stock option plan for its directors, officers, employees and consultants. At
September 30, 2008, 464,559 shares were authorized for future grant under our stock plan. Awards that expire or
are canceled generally become available for issuance again under the plan. We settle stock option exercises with
newly issued shares of common stock.

Fair value is estimated at the grant date based on a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model using the
following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
Expected stock price volatility ............ ... .. i 61% 66% 84%
Expected dividend yield ........... ... ... 0% 0% 0%
Risk free interest rate ... .........o.uiiniin i 3.17% 4.54% 4.36%
Average expected life (inyears) ..............c.. i 296 350 249

Expected stock price volatility rates are based on the historical volatility of the Company’s common stock.
We have not paid dividends in the past and do not currently expect to do so in the future. Risk free interest rates
are based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for periods corresponding with the
expected life of the option or award. The average expected life represents the estimated period of time that
options or awards granted are expected to be outstanding, based on the Company’s historical share option
exercise experience for similar option grants.
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The following is a summary of stock option activity through September 30, 2008:

Weighted
Average Aggregate
Shares Number of Remaining Intrinsic
Available for Options Weighted Term Value
Grant Outstanding Average Price  (in years)  ($ millions)
Balances at September 30,2007 ............. 493,392 812,006 $ 6.70 3.78 $13.3
Granted ............ ... ... ... ....... (59,382) 59,382 $27.49
Exercised ........................... (256,632) $ 5.46
Forfeited ............. ... ... ........ 7,149 (7,149) $16.90
Expired .......... ... ... .. ... ... 23,400 (23,400) $ 4.75
Balances at September 30,2008 ............. 464,559 584,207 $ 9.31 3.27 $ 8.6
Exercisable at September 30,2008 ........... 438,794 $ 4.99 3.58 $ 84

Total compensation cost not yet recognized for non-vested stock option awards is $0.8 million at
September 30, 2008 and has a weighted average period of 1.33 years over which the compensation expense is
expected to be recognized. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006
was $5.3 million, $3.8 million, and $1.4 million, respectively.

The options outstanding as of September 30, 2008 are as follows:

Weighted
Average
Number of Weighted Remaining
Options Average Term
M Outstanding Exercise Price (in years)
$ — =% 500 ... 342,799 $ 241 4.22
500 - 10.00 ... 45,187 $ 7.90 0.82
10.00 - 15.00 ....... ... ... ... 61,833 $10.14 1.18
15.00 - 20.00 ........ ... ... ... — $ — —
20.00 - 25.00 ... 35,818 $23.21 2.52
25.00 - 30.00 ........ .. 97,094 $28.26 2.67
30.00 - 3500 ... ﬂ $34.25 3.84
Outstanding, September 30,2008 ............. 584,207
Restricted Stock Plan

The Company sponsors a stock plan for its directors, officers and employees. At September 30, 2008,
657,184 shares were authorized for future grant under our restricted stock plan. Awards that expire or are
canceled generally become available for issuance again under the plan. We settle restricted stock with newly
issued shares of common stock.
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The following is a summary of all restricted stock activity through September 30, 2008:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Shares Number of Average Remaining Aggregate
Available for Shares Grant Date Term Intrinsic Value
Grant Outstanding  Fair Value (in years) ($ millions)
Balances at September 30,2007 ............ 733,516 16,484 $21.97 2.70 $0.4
Granted ........................... (85,738) 85,738 $26.56
Vested ...t (8,419) $23.31
Forfeited ........... ... ... ... ... ... 9,406 (9,4006) $26.38
Balances at September 30,2008 ............ 657,184 84,397 $26.01 2.25 $2.0

Total compensation cost not yet recognized for non-vested stock awards is $1.7 million at September 30,
2008 and has a weighted average period of 2.25 years over which the compensation expense is expected to be
recognized. Compensation expense is amortized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Restricted stock
grants are included in the Company’s total issued and outstanding common shares.

Savings Plans

The Company has a Savings Incentive Match Plan for Employees IRA (‘SIMPLE IRA”). Participating U.S.
employees may contribute up to 100% of their salary, but not more than statutory limits. We contribute a dollar
for each dollar a participant contributes in this plan, with a maximum contribution of 3% of a participant’s
earnings. Our U.K. based employees are eligible to participate in a defined contribution pension plan (‘pension
plan’). The Company contributes double the employees contribution up to 10% of total base salary for this plan.
For both plans, employees are 100% vested in both the employee and employer contributions at all times. For
fiscal years 2008, 2007 and 2006, the employer contribution to savings plans was $0.5 million, $0.4 million and
$0.3 million, respectively.

Note 19 — Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue one million shares of its preferred stock at a par value of $.01 per share.
As of September 30, 2008 and 2007, no preferred shares were outstanding and the Board of Directors had not yet
determined the specific rights and privileges of these shares.

Note 20 — Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes were as follows:

(In millions)

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
Current Taxes:

US. Federal ... ... $73 $09 $(1.1)
US.Stateand Local ......... ... ... ... . ... ... 0.8 0.3 (0.3)

International .. ... ... . . 2.1 3.2 1.5

CUITENE LAXES vt vttt et e et et et e 10.2 44 0.1

Deferred taxes . ... e 7.8 (6.4) 1.6

Income tax expense (benefit) .......................... $180 $2.0) $1.7
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U.S. and international components of income before income taxes was as follows:

(In millions)

Year Ended September 30, 2008 2007 2006
U S $42.4  $(14.6) $0.2
International . ......... . ... 5.2 8.9 5.1

Income before income tax and minority interest .................. $476 $ (5.7 $53

Items accounting for the difference between income taxes computed at the federal statutory rate and the
provision for income taxes were as follows:

Year Ended September 30, w M m
Federal statutory rate . ... ... ... ...ttt 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
Effect of:
U.S. State iNCOMEe taXes . ..ot vt ettt 31% 9.6% 0.6%
Foreign earnings taxed at higher (lower) rates . .................. 0.6% (2.3)% (2.4)%
Stock-based compensation eXpense . .. .. ..........ininiinen... 03% 3.6)% 0.0%
Non-deductible meals and entertainment .. ..................... 0.1% (0.8)% 0.7%
Other reconciling items . ....... ... ... i 0.3)% 2.1)% 0.0%
Effectiverate ........ ... 37.8% 34.8% 32.9%

The components of deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

(In millions)

September 30, 2008 2007
Deferred income tax assets:
Stock-based compensation eXpense . ... ........iiiii $03 $0.1
Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards ........................ — 6.4
Worthless security deduction . ............. i 1.0 —
Unrealized 10Ss 0N INVENTOTY ... ..ottt e 0.4 —
AMT credit carryforward .. ... ... 0.1
Foreign tax credit carryforward . ......... ... .. .. .. 0.1
Deferred income tax assets . .. .....vuv it $19 $67
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Partnership tax basis timing difference .............. ... .. .. .. .. ... ... $0.1) $(0.4)
Unrealized gain on OTC derivatives . ........... ...t .. (3.8) 0.7)
Deferred income tax liabilities ............... ... ... . ... ... ... .... 3.9 (1.1)
Net deferred income tax (liabilities) assets ...................... $2.0) $56

Deferred income tax balances reflect the effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities and their tax bases and are stated at enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when taxes are
actually paid or recovered.

The total amount of undistributed earnings in the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, for income tax purposes,

was approximately $14.6 million at September 30, 2008. It is the Company’s current intention to reinvest
undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries in the foreign jurisdictions, resulting in the indefinite

F-26



INTERNATIONAL ASSETS HOLDING CORPORATION

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)

postponement of the remittance of those earnings. Accordingly, no provision has been made for foreign
withholding taxes or United States income taxes which may become payable if undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries were paid as dividends to the Company. For the same reason, it is not practicable to calculate the
unrecognized deferred tax liability on those earnings.

Income taxes paid were $9.4 million in fiscal year 2008, $1.7 million in fiscal year 2007, and $3.2 million in
fiscal year 2006.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. This interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. This interpretation also provides guidance on derecognition, classification,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company adopted the
provisions of FIN 48 on October 1, 2007 and was not required to record any cumulative effect adjustment to
retained earnings as a result of this adoption. The Company recognizes potential interest and penalties as a
component of income tax expense.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income tax returns with the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various states,
and various foreign jurisdictions. During the fourth quarter, we completed a review by the Internal Revenue
Service (‘IRS’) for fiscal year 2006 which resulted in offsetting changes to our current taxes payable and our
provision for deferred taxes but had no effect on our recorded tax expense.

Note 21 - Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2008, the Company notified the employees of its Hong Kong subsidiary, INTL Global
Currencies (Asia) Ltd., of its intention to discontinue its foreign exchange margin trading operations. As of
September 30, 2008, the Company was in the process of effecting the orderly liquidation of this subsidiary,
which is expected to be completed before the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2009. The Company incurred losses
before taxes of $2.4 million and $0.2 million in this subsidiary during fiscal years 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The Company expects to realize a tax benefit of $1.0 million for the 2008 fiscal year. The results of operations
for INTL Global Currencies (Asia) Ltd., which were previously included in the foreign exchange trading
segment, are included within discontinued operations on the income statement for all periods presented.
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Note 22 — Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The Company has set forth certain unaudited financial data for the twelve quarters in fiscal years 2008, 2007

and 2006 in the table below:

(In millions, except per share amounts)
Quarter Ended

Fiscal Year 2008
Operating reVenuUeS . ... ... .vuveuneunenneneeneennn.
Interest eXpense . . . ...ttt

Netrevenues ..............iuiuiiiiiiinnnan...
Total non-interest eXpenses . ..........c..c..eoenenen...
Income taX eXpense . . ....cvt it
Minority interest .. .........init i

Income from continuing operations ....................
Loss from discontinued operations . ....................

NEtINCOME . ..ottt e e

Net basic earnings (loss) pershare .....................
Net diluted earnings (loss) per share ...................

Fiscal Year 2007
Operating revenues . .. ..........cuvuvrnenenennenan .
Interest eXpense . . . ..ottt

Netrevenues ......... ...t ..
Total non-interest eXpenses . ...............oeuenen...
Income tax eXpense . . .. ..cvv vt
Minority interest .. .........enin i

Income from continuing operations ....................
Loss from discontinued operations . ....................

Netincome . ...

Net basic earnings (loss) per share .....................
Net diluted earnings (loss) per share ...................

Fiscal Year 2006
Operating TeVENUES . . .. v vt e te ettt ee e eeeaen
INterest eXPense . . . oo vt

Netrevenues ......... ...t ..
Total non-interest eXpenses . ................coeueu...
Income tax exXpense ... ...t
Minority interest . ... .......ounit e

Income from continuing operations . ...................
Loss from discontinued operations .. ...................

NetinCome .. ...ttt e

Net basic earnings (loss) per share .....................
Net diluted earnings (loss) per share ...................

December 31 March 31 June 30 September 30

$42.0 $32.7  $30.9 $21.8
3.0 2.8 2.4 3.0
39.0 29.9 28.5 18.8
16.9 18.4 16.5 16.8
8.2 4.3 4.6 0.9
0.8 0.5 0.2 (1.1)
13.1 6.7 7.2 2.2
0.2 0.7 0.4 0.1

$ 129 $60 $ 638 $ 2.1
$ 1.56 $0.71  $0.80 $0.24
$1.35 $0.64 $0.72 $0.23
$ 9.2 $148 $ 95 $ 20.1
1.5 1.8 2.5 3.6
7.7 13.0 7.0 16.5
9.7 11.8 12.6 15.8
(0.8) 0.5 (2.0) 0.3
0.2 0.1 0.1 0.2
(1.4) 0.6 (3.7) 0.2
— — 0.1 0.1

$ (1.4) $06 $ (3.8 $ 0.1
$(0.19) $0.08  $(0.46) $ 0.01
$(0.19) $0.08  $(0.46) $ 0.01
$ 84 $90 $14.1 $ 44
0.5 0.5 0.6 0.5
7.9 8.5 13.5 3.9
6.2 6.8 8.2 7.3
0.6 0.6 2.0 (1.5)
— — — 0.1
1.1 1.1 3.3 (2.0)
$ 1.1 $ 1.1 $ 33 $ (2.0)
$0.14 $0.14  $0.43 $(0.25)
$0.13 $0.13  $0.39 $(0.25)
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Note 23 — Segment Information

The Company’s activities are currently divided into five functional areas: international equities market-
making, international debt capital markets, foreign exchange trading, commodities trading and asset
management.

International Equities Market-Making

Through INTL Trading, the Company acts as a wholesale market maker in select foreign securities
including unlisted ADRs and foreign ordinary shares. INTL Trading provides execution and liquidity to national
broker-dealers, regional broker-dealers and institutional investors.

Foreign Exchange Trading

The Company trades currencies, with a focus on illiquid currencies of developing countries. The Company’s
customers are financial institutions, multi-national corporations, governmental organizations and charitable
organizations operating in these developing countries. In addition, the Company executes trades based on the
foreign currency flows inherent in the Company’s existing business activities. The Company primarily acts as a
principal in buying and selling foreign currencies on a spot basis. The Company derives revenue from the
difference between the purchase and sale prices.

Commodities Trading

The Company provides a full range of trading and hedging capabilities to select producers, consumers,
recyclers and investors in precious metals and certain base metals. Acting as a principal, the Company commits
its own capital to buy and sell the metals on a spot and forward basis.

The Company records all of its physical commodities revenues on a gross basis. Operating revenues and
losses from the Company’s commodities derivatives activities are recorded in ‘Net dealer inventory and
investment gains’. All of the Company’s other businesses report their revenues on a net basis. Inventory for the
commodities business is stated at the lower of cost or market value, under the provisions of ARB No. 43. The
Company generally mitigates the price risk associated with commodities held in inventory through the use of
derivatives. This price risk mitigation does not generally qualify for hedge accounting under GAAP. In such
situations, unrealized gains in inventory are not recognized under GAAP, but unrealized gains and losses in
related derivative positions are recognized under GAAP. Additionally, GAAP does not require us to reflect
changes in the estimated values of forward commitments to purchase or sell commodities. As a result, the
Company’s reported earnings from commodities trading are subject to significant volatility.

International Debt Capital Markets

The Company arranges international debt transactions and asset backed securitizations for issuers located
primarily in emerging markets. These transactions include bond issues, syndicated loans, and asset backed
securitizations, as well as forms of other negotiable debt instruments. The revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities relating to the Trust Certificate and Total Return Swap discussed in Note 9 are included in this
segment.
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Asset Management

The asset management segment revenues include fees, commissions and other revenues received by the
Company for management of third party assets and investment gains or losses on the Company’s investments in
managed funds and proprietary accounts managed either by the Company’s investment managers or by
independent investment managers.

Other

All other transactions that do not relate to the operating segments above are classified as ‘Other’. Certain
cash accounts and balances were maintained to support the administration of all of the operating segments. These
multi-segment assets were allocated to ‘Other’. Revenue reported for ‘Other’ includes interest income but not
interest expense.

The total revenues reported combine gross revenues for the commodities business and net revenues for all
other businesses. In order to reflect the way that the Company’s management views the results, the tables below
also reflect the segmental contribution to ‘Operating revenues’, which is shown on the face of the Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Operations and which is calculated by deducting physical commodities cost of sales
from total revenues.

Segment data includes the profitability measure of net contribution by segment. Net contribution is one of
the key measures used by management to assess the performance of each segment and for decisions regarding the
allocation of the Company’s resources. Net contribution is calculated as revenue less direct cost of sales, clearing
and clearing related charges and variable trader bonus compensation. Variable trader bonus compensation
represents a fixed percentage of an amount equal to revenues produced less clearing and related charges, base
salaries and an overhead allocation.

Inter-segment revenues, charges, receivables and payables are eliminated between segments, except
revenues and costs related to foreign currency transactions undertaken on an arm’s length basis by the foreign
exchange trading business for the equity, commodities trading and debt trading businesses. The foreign exchange
trading business competes for this business as it does for any other business. If its rates are not competitive the
equity, commodities trading and debt trading businesses buy or sell their foreign currency through other market
counter-parties. The profit or loss made by the foreign exchange trading business on these transactions is not
quantifiable.
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Information concerning operations in these segments of business is as follows:

(In millions)
Year Ended September 30,

Total revenues:
International equities market-making ............... .. ... .. .. ... ...
Foreign exchange trading . .. ......... ... .. i
Commodities trading . ... ......... ottt
International debt capital markets ............ .. .. .. .. ... .. .. ...,
ASSEt MANAZEMENT « . . ottt e et e e e e
Other . ..o

Operating revenues:
International equities market-making ........... .. .. ... .. .. .. ...,
Foreign exchange trading . ........... .. .. . i
Commodities trading .. .......... . i
International debt capital markets ............ ... ... .. ... .. .. ...,
ASSEt MANAZEIMENT .« . ¢ . vttt et et et e e
Other .. ...

Net contribution (loss):
(Revenues less cost of sales, clearing and related expenses, variable bonus
compensation and bad debt expense):

International equities market-making ............. .. ... .. .. ... .. ...
Foreign exchange trading . ........... .. .. .. . . .. . i
Commodities trading . ...........o .
International debt capital markets ............ .. .. .. ... . . .. ...
ASSEt MANAZEMENT . . ..o\ttt ettt
Other . .o

Reconciliation of net contribution (loss) to income (loss) before income tax and
minority interest:
Net contribution allocated to segments .............................
Costs not allocated to operating segments .. ....................c.....

Income (loss) before income tax and minority interest .............

As of September 30,

Total assets:
International equities market-making ................. ... .. ... ...,
Foreign exchange trading . .. ............. .. .,
Commodities trading . ... .........iintt i
International debt capital markets ............ .. .. .. .. ... .. .. .. ...
ASSEt MANAZEMENT . . . v\ttt t e e et e
Other . . ...

2008 2007 2006
339 $ 275 $ 18.0
23.8 142 129

182812 43975 4415
43 6.4 2.4
12.2 14.0 1.3
35 0.7 0.4

$18,358.9 $4,460.3 $476.5
33.9 275 18.0
23.8 142 129
49.7 92) 09
43 6.4 2.4
12.2 14.0 1.3
35 0.7 0.4

1274 $ 536 $ 359
176 $ 138 $ 93
17.7 11.1 9.9
452 (120)  (0.5)
3.8 4.6 2.0
9.4 12.3 0.8
33 0.6 0.4
97.0 $ 304 $ 21.9
97.0 $ 304 $ 21.9
49 4 361 16.6
476 $ (57 $ 53

2008 2007
489 $ 496
52.9 61.3
2053 1667
11.2 272
114.4 49.8
53 6.6

$ 4380 $ 361.2




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name

IAHC Bermuda, Ltd.

INTL Assets, Inc.

INTL Commodities, Inc.

INTL Global Currencies Limited

INTL Holding (U.K.) Limited

INTL Trading, Inc.

INTL Consilium LLC

INTL Capital Limited

INTL Commodities Mexico S de RL de CV

INTL Asia Pte. Ltd

INTL Commodities DMCC

INTL Netherlands B.V.

INTL Capital and Treasury Global Services Ltd.

INTL Global Currencies (Asia) Ltd.

INTL Capital S.A. (formerly Gainvest Argentina Asset Management S.A.)
Gainvest S.A. Sociedad Gerente de Fondos Comunes de Inversion
Gainvest do Brasil Ltda.

INTL Gainvest Capital Uruguay S.A. (formerly Gainvest Uruguay Asset
Management S.A.)

Gainvest Asset Management Ltd.

Gletir S.A.

Exhibit 21

Place of Incorporation

Bermuda

Florida

Delaware

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

Florida

Florida

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Mexico

Singapore

Dubai, United Arab Emirates
The Netherlands

Nigeria

Hong Kong

Argentina

Argentina

Brazil

Uruguay
British Virgin Islands
Uruguay



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance and has put in place a
framework that fosters good governance, is practical for a company of our size and satisfies our
current listing and regulatory requirements.

Executives

The Company has instituted a Code of Ethics that demands honest and ethical conduct from all
employees. Specific topics covered are conflicts of interest, fair dealing, compliance with regulations
and accurate financial reporting. The roles of Chairman and CEO are split. The CEO and CFO make
all necessary representations to satisfy regulatory and listing requirements. Executive compensation is
determined by a Compensation Committee composed exclusively of non-executive directors.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of two executive and five non-executive directors. All directors are
elected annually. The Board oversees the strategy, finances, operation and regulatory compliance of
the Company through regular quarterly meetings and additional special meetings when required. A
change in the Chairmanship requires the support of 75% of the shares of common stock. The roles of
Chairman and CEO are split. The non-executive directors regularly meet independently of the
executive directors. The Nominating, Audit and Compensation Committees are each composed of
three non-executive directors. The members of the Audit Committee qualify as financial experts.

Financial Reporting and Internal Control

The Company strives to present clear, accurate and timely financial statements. Management has a
system of internal controls in place, regularly assesses the effectiveness of these controls and modifies
them as necessary. Risk management is an important aspect of this system of internal controls and
management has established a Risk Committee to establish and monitor compliance with risk policies.

Investor Relations

The Company seeks to provide accurate and timely information to shareholders and other
stakeholders to facilitate a better understanding of the Company and its activities. The Company seeks
to distribute such information as widely as possible through filings on Form 8-K, press releases and
postings on its website, www.intlassets.com.

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Inquiries about the Company, including requests for annual reports, Form 10-K and 10-Q documents
and other financial information should be submitted to the Chief Financial Officer, International Assets
Holding Corporation, 220 E. Central Parkway, Suite 2060, Altamonte Springs, FL 32701.

COMMON STOCK

The Company’s common stock trades on Nasdaq under the symbol “IAAC”.




ExeEcuTIVE DIRECTORS

SEAN M. O’CONNOR
DIRECTOR AND CHIEF ExECUTIVE OFFICER

ScoTT J. BRANCH
DIRECTOR AND PRESIDENT

ExecuTivE OFFICERS

BRIAN T. SEPHTON
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND TREASURER

NANCEY M. MCMURTRY
SECRETARY AND VICE-PRESIDENT

NoN—-EXEcuTIVE DIRECTORS

DieGgo J. VEITIA
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RoBERT A. MILLER, PH.D.
DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF NOMINATING COMMITTEE
MEMBER OF COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

JOHN RADzZIWILL

DIRECTOR , CHAIRMAN OF AUDIT COMMITTEE,
MEMBER OF COMPENSATION AND NOMINATING
COMMITTEES

JusTIN R. WHEELER
DIRECTOR, MEMBER OF AUDIT AND NOMINATING
COMMITTEES

JOHN M. FOWLER
DIRECTOR, CHAIRMAN OF COMPENSATION
CoMMITTEE, MEMBER OF AuDIT COMMITTEE

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PuBLIC

ACCOUNTING FIRM

RoOTHSTEIN, KAss & CompPaNy, P.C.
4, BECKER FARM RD.

RosELAND, NJ 07068

COUNSEL

SHUTTS & BowEN LLP

1500 Miami CENTER

201 SouTH BiscaYNE BOULEVARD
Miami, FL 33131

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR
THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON
BNY MELLON SHAREOWNER SERVICES
PO Box 3312

SouTH HACKENSACK, NJ 07606

OFFICES

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

220 E. CENTRAL PARKWAY, SUITE 2060
ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701

TeL: +1-407-741-5300

708 THIRD AVENUE
NEw York, NY 10017
TEL: +1-212-485-3500

350 EAsT LAs OLAs BLvD, suITe 1250
FORT LAUDERDALE, FL 33301
TEL: +1-954-315-9388

1001 BRICKELL BAY DRIVE, sUITE 1504
Miami, FL 33131
TEL: +1-305-377-0074

UNITED KINGDOM
PHOENIX HOUSE,

18 KING WILLIAM STREET,
LonpoN EC4N 7BP

TEL: +44-207-220-6060

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

GoLD HouseE, 202 AL RAAS STREET
DEIRA, DuBAl

TEL: +971-4-226-9393

LEVEL 1, GATE VILLAGE 05, DIFC, DuBAl
TEL: +4971-4-365-3118

SINGAPORE

1 RAFFLES PLACE, #43-03 OUB CENTRE
SINGAPORE 048616

TEL: +65-6309-1000

ARGENTINA

SARMIENTO 459
BUENOS AIRES

TEL: +54-11-4390-7595

Urucuay

WORLD TRADE CENTRE
Luis A. bE HERRERA 1248
11300 MONTEVIDEO

TEL: +59-82-628-3047




NEw YORK LoNDON DuBal SINGAPORE
FORT LAUDERDALE ALTAMONTE SPRINGS Miami
BUENOS AIRES MONTEVIDEO





<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /PageByPage
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.3
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings false
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (Color Management Off)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Average
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Average
  /GrayImageResolution 100
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Average
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 5.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (RRD Low Resolution \(Letter Page Size\))
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


